
City of Kodiak Regular Council Meeting Agenda for January 8, 2015 

7:30 p.m., at 710 Mill Bay Road, Assembly Chambers (Room 232) 

 

 

I. Call to Order/Roll Call 

Pledge of Allegiance/Invocation 

 

II. Previous Minutes 

Approval of Minutes of the December 11, 2014, Regular Council Meeting ...................................1 

 

III. Persons to Be Heard 

a. Proclamation: Stalking Awareness Month ...........................................................................8 

b. Public Comments (limited to 3 minutes) (486-3231) 

 

IV. Unfinished Business 

a. Second Reading and Public Hearing, Ordinance No. 1328, Authorizing a Contract     

With the Kodiak Historical Society to Operate the Baranov Museum ..............................12 

b. Appointment to the City Position on the Prince William Sound Regional Citizens 

Advisory Council ...............................................................................................................28 

 

V. New Business 

a. First Reading, Ordinance No. 1329, Authorizing the City to Enter Into an Amendment   

to the Preferential Use Agreement With Horizon Lines of Alaska, LLC ..........................38 

b. First Reading, Ordinance No. 1330, Amending Ordinance No. 1323, Authorizing a  

Lease of a Communication Site in U.S. Survey 3945 on Pillar Mountain To NCWPCS 

MPL 31 – Year Sites Tower Holdings, LLC .....................................................................60 

c. Resolution No. 2015–01, Accepting a State of Alaska Legislative Grant for E911   

Updates ..............................................................................................................................78 

d. Authorization of Change Order No. 1 (Second Amendment) to the Composting Contract 

With Quayanna Development Corporation .......................................................................84 

e. Acceptance of FY2014 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (Audit) .......................98 

f. Advisory and Personnel Board Appointments and Planning and Zoning Commission 

Recommendation .............................................................................................................100 

 

VI. Staff Reports 

a. City Manager 

b. City Clerk 

 

VII. Mayor’s Comments 

 

VIII. Council Comments 

 

IX. Audience Comments (limited to 3 minutes) (486-3231) 

 

X. Adjournment 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(This page left intentionally blank.) 



  7885 

DRAFT 
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 

OF THE CITY OF KODIAK 

HELD THURSDAY, DECEMBER 11, 2014 

IN THE BOROUGH ASSEMBLY CHAMBERS 

 

 

I. MEETING CALLED TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/INVOCATION 
 

Deputy Mayor Gabriel T. Saravia called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m. Councilmembers Ran-

dall C. Bishop, Charles E. Davidson, Terry J. Haines, Richard H. Walker, and John B. Whiddon 

were present and constituted a quorum. Mayor Pat Branson was absent. City Manager Aimée 

Kniaziowski, City Clerk Debra L. Marlar, and Deputy Clerk Michelle Shuravloff-Nelson were 

also present. 

 

II. PREVIOUS MINUTES 
 

Councilmember Whiddon MOVED to approve the minutes of the November 13, 2014, regular 

meeting as presented. 

 

The roll call vote was Councilmembers Bishop, Davidson, Haines, Saravia, Walker, and 

Whiddon in favor. The motion passed. 

 

III. PERSONS TO BE HEARD 

 

a. Public Comments 

 

Gretchen Saupe, Senior Citizens Inc. Board member, thanked the Council for their support and 

gave an overview of senior programs. She said the Senior Citizens Inc. is the lead agency for the 

KATS bus. She said she appreciates the Council’s support, and she encouraged individuals that 

would like to know more about the services to contact the Senior Center. 

 

John Glover, President of the Kodiak Hockey League, stated the league is requesting the use of 

City property to fundraise, and he thanked the Council for their consideration. 

 

Tiffany Brunson, Executive Director, Kodiak Historical Society and member of Kodiak Non-

profit Network gave a brief update of the nonprofit entities and activities within the community. 

She said the nonprofits are social programs serving the community, and she thanked the Council 

for their support of the local nonprofit organizations. 

 

IV. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

 None 

 

V. NEW BUSINESS 
 

a. First Reading, Ordinance No. 1328, Authorizing a Contract With the Kodiak Historical 

Society to Operate the Baranov Museum  

 

1



 DECEMBER 11, 2014 7886 

 

Deputy Mayor Saravia read Ordinance No. 1328 by title. The City of Kodiak has partially fund-

ed the Kodiak Historical Society (KHS) to operate the Baranov Museum for many years. The 

KHS requested that the City enter into an operating agreement or contract with them for the ser-

vices. The City Manager worked with the KHS Executive Director over several months to devel-

op a two-year agreement. Based on City Charter requirements and legal advice, the approval for 

a two-year operating agreement will be made by Council through the ordinance process.  

 

Councilmember Haines MOVED to pass Ordinance No. 1328 in the first reading and advance it 

to second reading and public hearing at the next regular or special meeting. 

 

The roll call vote was Councilmembers Bishop, Davidson, Haines, Saravia, Walker, and 

Whiddon in favor. The motion passed. 

 

b. Resolution No. 2014–37, Issuing a Permit to Kodiak Hockey League to Sell Concessions 

for Hockey Games at Baranof Park  

 

Deputy Mayor Saravia read Resolution No. 2014–37 by title. Kodiak Hockey League is a newly 

formed non-profit organization that provides up to 150 Kodiak youth the opportunity to learn the 

game of hockey as well as sportsmanship, fair play, respect, and teamwork. KHL wants permis-

sion from the City to sell concessions in an effort to fundraise on City property to support its ac-

tivities. Youth sport clubs like KHL do great work in the community and alleviate some of the 

burden on the City Parks and Recreation Department in administering those programs.  

 

Councilmember Bishop MOVED to adopt Resolution No. 2014–37. 

 

The roll call vote was Councilmembers Bishop, Davidson, Haines, Saravia, Walker, and 

Whiddon in favor. The motion passed. 

 

c. Appointment to the City Position on the Prince William Sound Regional Citizens Advi-

sory Council  

 

The City of Kodiak has a dedicated seat for a representative on the Prince William Sound Re-

gional Citizens’ Advisory Council (PWSRCAC). Jane Eisemann, who has served as the City’s 

representative since 2001 has resigned her position, and another individual needs to be appointed 

to the City-designated seat. Ms. Eisemann’s seat expires in May 2015. PWSRCAC staff has in-

formed the City that the Council may recommend appointment through May 2015 or may rec-

ommend appointment through May 2017. 

 

Councilmember Haines MOVED to appoint the City representative to the Prince William RCAC 

by a secret vote on paper ballot, provided that the first candidate to receive four affirmative votes 

be appointed for a term ending May 2017, and further provided that if no candidate receives four 

affirmative votes in the first ballot, a second-round ballot shall be cast, and if no candidate re-

ceives four affirmative votes in the second round, the vote shall be postponed to the January 8, 

2015, meeting when the Mayor is present to break a tie. 

 

The roll call vote was Councilmembers Bishop, Davidson, Haines, Saravia, Walker, and 

Whiddon in favor. The motion passed. 

 

2



 DECEMBER 11, 2014 7887 

 

Clerk Marlar initiated the first secret ballot and announced a tie vote. 

 

Clerk Marlar initiated a second round ballot and announced another tie vote; she restated the vote 

will be postponed to the January 8, 2105, meeting when the Mayor is present to break a tie. 

 

d. Authorization to Purchase Vehicle for Public Works  

 

Each vehicle and piece of heavy equipment is evaluated by the City shop to determine its me-

chanical safety and condition prior to being recommended for replacement. By using a mechani-

cal and structural evaluation process, the maintenance crew evaluates each piece first for safety 

issues and second for significant mechanical issues requiring major investment in repairs. In the 

FY2015 budget, Public Works budgeted for the replacement of an existing maintenance pickup 

for the water/distribution division. The existing pickup has been through a mechanical evaluation 

by the City maintenance shop and is recommended for replacement.  

 

Councilmember Walker MOVED to award the Public Works vehicle bid to Kodiak Motors for a 

½ ton 4x4 pickup truck in the amount of $23,300, with funds coming from the Water Depart-

ment, machinery and equipment account line item. 

 

The roll call vote was Councilmembers Bishop, Davidson, Haines, Saravia, Walker, and 

Whiddon in favor. The motion passed. 

 

e. Authorization of Professional Services Agreement With State Lobbyist  

 

The City Council selected Ray Gillespie of Gillespie & Associates to be the City’s state lobbyist 

in 2011. The contract will expire on December 31, 2014. Ray Gillespie has requested to be re-

tained by the City. In recognition of Mr. Gillespie’s efforts of the past three years, the Manager 

recommended Council authorize a one-year contract in the amount of $48,735, with a two-year 

contract extension option.  

 

Councilmember Walker MOVED to authorize Contract No. 218110 from January 1, 2015, to 

December 31, 2015, with an option to renew for two additional years, with Gillespie and Associ-

ates for state lobbying services in the amount of $48,735 plus expenses, with funds coming from 

the General Fund Legislative Professional Services account and authorize the City Manager to 

sign the contract for the City. 

 

The roll call vote was Councilmembers Bishop, Davidson, Haines, Saravia, Walker, and 

Whiddon in favor. The motion passed. 

 

f. Authorization of Professional Services Contract for Design and Bidding  Services for 

Downtown Lift Stations Nos. 1 & 2 PN 11-06/7509. 

 

Beginning in 2011, staff started the evaluations of both lift stations 1 and 2. Based on their con-

dition, staff did not feel either could wait until work began as part of the downtown master plan 

to replace utilities. A major failure of electric or leak within the dry well would be catastrophic. 

Both lift stations are below ground and consist of dry wells containing electrical controls, pumps 

and operation valves. The wet wells sit right next to the dry well and serve as the collection 

points to pump from. The dry wells are underground steel units that are entered from above 

3



 DECEMBER 11, 2014 7888 

 

ground by permanent ladders inside. Through the evaluation work, corrosion study, and cost es-

timating, it was determined that both stations could be refurbished for considerably less than re-

placement and still provide many more years of service. The corrosion study indicated that there 

is significant life remaining in both stations and are good candidates for refurbishment. 

 

Councilmember Bishop MOVED to authorize a professional services agreement with 

DOWL/HKM for design and bidding of the Downtown Lift Stations Nos. 1 & 2, Project No. 11-

06/7509 in the amount of $93,673, with funds coming from the Sewer Capital Improvement fund 

project number 7509 and authorize the City Manager to execute the documents on behalf of the 

City. 

 

The roll call vote was Councilmembers Bishop, Davidson, Haines, Saravia, Walker, and 

Whiddon in favor. The motion passed. 

 

g. Election of Deputy Mayor  

 

Under the provisions of City Charter Article II, Section 2, the City Council shall elect one of its 

members as Deputy Mayor no sooner than thirty days, nor more than sixty days, from the begin-

ning of the newly-elected Councilmembers’ terms. The Deputy Mayor serves a one-year term 

and acts as Mayor in the Mayor’s absence. If a vacancy occurs in the office of Mayor, the Depu-

ty Mayor serves until another Mayor is elected by the Council. 

 

Councilmember Davidson MOVED to elect Terry Haines as Deputy Mayor for a one-year term. 

 

The roll call vote was Councilmembers Bishop, Davidson, Haines, Saravia, Walker, and 

Whiddon in favor. The motion passed. 

 

VI. STAFF REPORTS 

 

a. City Manager 

 

Manager Kniaziowski shared that Mayor Branson was awarded the Vic Fischer award at AML in 

November. She stated Trident has been in the news recently regarding the apartment evictions, 

and she was given an update on their work to relocate families during a recent meeting. She met 

with the Department of Transportation, and she indicated the Tustumena is currently docking at 

Pier I, and they have issued a press release that work at the dock is suspended until a modified 

permit is issued. She indicated that DEC will issue comments on the City composting permit ap-

plication, and public notice and comments will be open until January 20 at 5 p.m. She gave a re-

minder that Michelle Drew, BDO, will be presenting the FY2014 audit in January, and DOWL 

will present on the downtown water and sewer master plan. She said the Monashka project is go-

ing well. She stated Planning and Zoning approved the Gibson Cove road right-of-way for 

placement of the flywheels. She referred to the Washington DC lobbyist report and gave a brief 

update on Pier III. She stated she will be on leave from December 20 until January 4, and she 

wished everyone a happy and safe holiday season. 

 

 

 

 

4



 DECEMBER 11, 2014 7889 

 

b. City Clerk 

 

City Clerk Marlar informed the public of the next scheduled Council work session and regular 

meeting. 

 

VII. MAYOR’S COMMENTS 
 

Mayor Branson was absent. 

 

VIII. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 

Councilmember Walker thanked City workers, and he commented on all the special projects. He 

wished everyone a Merry Christmas and a safe holiday season. 

 

Councilmember Bishop congratulated Mayor Branson on the Vic Fischer award and Terry 

Haines on becoming Deputy Mayor. He reminded everyone to be safe and not to drink and drive 

during the holiday season. He commented on the good work of CHARR and said that downtown 

drinking establishments will give out free taxi vouchers on New Year’s Eve. 

 

Councilmember Haines thanked the Council for electing him as Deputy Mayor; he said it is an 

honor and he enjoys working with them. He congratulated Mayor Branson on her award and 

thanked her for her public service. He commented he was pleased on the pump station and the 

work to refurbish it. He encouraged the public to view the size of the Tustumena replacement to 

ensure the smaller communities are served. He said he is excited for the DOWL presentation in 

January, and he feels it will aid the progress of the revitalization of downtown. He said he is glad 

the delegation made a three-year extension to the vessel discharge act, and he will continue to 

support a permanent solution and hopes that extensions are not necessary in the future. 

 

Councilmember Whiddon congratulated Councilmember Haines on his election as Deputy 

Mayor. He said he was disappointed they were not able to appoint a Prince William Sound Re-

gional Citizens Advisory Council seat during the meeting; however, it demonstrated the caliber 

of applicants. He said he was glad the kids are participating in hockey and complimented the 

abundance of opportunities on the island. He said Trident is an American company investing in 

the Kodiak community, and he hopes they are seen as a proactive company that worked to ad-

dress a housing issue that was brought up by the processors a few years ago. He wished everyone 

happy holidays. 

 

Councilmember Davidson said he attended AML, and was present when Mayor Branson re-

ceived the Vic Fischer award, which he said was the highlight. He said the infrastructure in Ko-

diak is solid with electrical rates, water supply, docks, and kid activities, and he commended 

staff, Council, State elected officials, and the State. He said during AML there was discussion 

about the marijuana law, and he said governments are awaiting legislation to be set up to deal 

with sales and distribution. He said state revenue will be in a downturn and it will affect the road 

funding for Kodiak. He emphasized it will be a lean budgetary year. He wished everyone a Mer-

ry Christmas. 

 

5



 DECEMBER 11, 2014 7890 

 

Councilmember Saravia congratulated Councilmember Haines and Mayor Branson. He thanked 

the public for their attendance at the meeting, and he wished everyone a happy and safe holiday 

season. He thanked the community for providing activities for the kids. 

 

IX. AUDIENCE COMMENTS 
 

None 

 

X. ADJOURNMENT 
 

Councilmember Davidson MOVED to adjourn the meeting. 

 

The roll call vote was Councilmembers Bishop, Davidson, Haines, Saravia, Walker, and 

Whiddon in favor. The motion passed. 

 

The meeting adjourned at 8:33 p.m. 

 

 

  CITY OF KODIAK 

 

 

 

  MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

  

CITY CLERK   

 

 

Minutes Approved:  

6



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PERSONS TO BE HEARD 

7



 

JANUARY 8, 2015 

Agenda Item III. a. Memo Page 1 of 1 

 

MEMORANDUM TO COUNCIL 

Date: January 8, 2015 

Agenda Item: III. a. Proclamation: Stalking Awareness Month 

 

SUMMARY: This proclamation acknowledges staking as a serious crime and supports the efforts of 

victim service providers, police officers, prosecutors, national and community organizations, and private 

sector supporters for their efforts in assisting victims and promoting awareness about stalking. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 Attachment A: Proclamation: Stalking Awareness Month 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8



 

 

PROCLAMATION 
Declaring Stalking Awareness Month 

 

 WHEREAS, under the laws of all fifty states, the District of Columbia, and 
federal government, stalking is a crime; and 
 

WHEREAS, 7.5 million people were stalked in one year in the United 
States, and the majority of victims are stalked by someone they know; and 

 
 WHEREAS, three in four women killed by an intimate partner had been 
stalked by that intimate partner; and 
 
 WHEREAS, many stalking victims are forced to protect themselves by 
relocating, changing their identities, changing jobs, and obtaining protection orders; 
and 

WHEREAS, many stalkers use increasingly sophisticated devices, such as 
global positioning systems, cameras, and computer spyware to track their victims; 
and 
 WHEREAS, communities can better combat stalking by adopting 
multidisciplinary responses by teams of local agencies and organizations and by 
providing more and better victim services; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Kodiak Women’s Resource and Crisis Center is joining forces 
with victim service providers, criminal justice officials, and concerned citizens 
throughout Kodiak Island and the United States to observe National Stalking 
Awareness Month.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, I, Pat Branson, Mayor of the City of Kodiak, do 
hereby proclaim January 2015, as: 
 

Stalking Awareness Month 
 
in Kodiak and applaud the efforts of victim service providers, police officers, 
prosecutors, and others for assisting victims, promoting awareness to recognize the 
signs of stalking, acknowledging stalking as a serious crime; and urge those 
impacted not to be afraid to speak out or ask for help.  
 
 Dated this 8th day of January 2015. 
        City of Kodiak 
 
        Pat Branson, Mayor 

9

cperkins
Text Box
Attachment A



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(This page left intentionally blank.) 

10



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

11



12



 

JANUARY 8, 2015 

Agenda Item IV. a. Memo Page 2 of 3 

 

increases at 3 percent per year. Staff and the KHS Executive Director worked toward development of an 

agreement that is shorter in length, is reasonable to both parties, and identifies the responsibilities of 

each party.  

 

The recommended agreement is for two years with the specifically agreed upon funding levels for two 

years as supported by Council during the budget development process; $90,000 for FY2015 and $92,700 

for FY2016. Based on discussions at the December 9 work session, Council expressed support to fund 

KHS’s additional request to fund costs for the fire suppression and alarm system during the two years of 

the contract. The agreement indicates that the City will pay an amount not to exceed $950 dollars per 

year for the cost of the fire suppression and alarm contract. Because the City has other agreements with 

this firm, staff will work with KHS and Grinnell to try to renegotiate the museum’s agreement. In the 

meantime, KHS will manage and monitor the contract. The additional fire suppression and alarm costs 

will be included in the FY2015 supplemental budget amendment and will increase the Parks and 

Recreation operating budget by the additional $950. 

 

ALTERNATIVES: Council may adopt Ordinance No. 1328 in the second reading, which would 

authorize the agreement at the budgeted and previously agreed upon amounts of $90,000 for FY2015 

and $92,700 for FY2016 and include a not-to-exceed amount of $950 per year to cover the costs of the 

fire suppression and alarm system contract. Council may also postpone or amend the agreement to 

reflect a different FY2015-FY2016 funding allocation, neither of which is recommended. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: The current version of the FY2015 budget reflects an expenditure of 

$90,000 for FY2015. The FY2015 amount is reflected in the General Fund, Parks and Recreation section 

of the budget and, the additional funds would come from the General Fund fund balance. The amount 

for FY2016 of $92,700 would be added to the draft budget for Council to approve and would include the 

not-to-exceed amount of $950 for fire suppression and alarm contract costs.  

 

LEGAL: The City Attorney was consulted about the agreement and process and prepared the ordinance. 

He explained that the agreement requires approval through the adoption of an ordinance, per Section V-

17 Contracts and Sales of the City Charter, because it is similar to a lease and deals with the disposal of 

interest in real property belonging to the City. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends Council adopt Ordinance No. 1328 at this meeting 

following the public hearing. The two-year agreement ending on June 30, 2016, would formally 

recognize and permit the Kodiak Historical Society to provide museum services and collections to the 

community through the Baranov Museum with terms to be determined by Council for each of the two 

years, with funds coming from the General Fund, Parks and Recreation, Museum account. 

 

CITY MANAGER’S COMMENTS: The City has provided annual funding amounts to the KHS for 

many years in order to help them operate the Baranov Museum. KHS requested a formal agreement with 

13



 

JANUARY 8, 2015 

Agenda Item IV. a. Memo Page 3 of 3 

 

the City, and I’ve worked with Tiffany Brunson on the development of the agreement (Attachment B) 

while the City Attorney fashioned the ordinance. If Council agrees to the terms of the agreement, they 

would adopt Ordinance No. 1328. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

Attachment A: Ordinance No. 1328 

Attachment B: Proposed FY2015-2016 contract between the Historical Society of Kodiak and  

   the City of Kodiak 

Attachment C: Proposal documents from Kodiak Historical Society 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PROPOSED MOTION: 

Move to adopt Ordinance No. 1328. 

14



Ordinance No. 1328 

Page 1 of 2 

 

CITY OF KODIAK 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 1328 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KODIAK 

AUTHORIZING A CONTRACT WITH THE KODIAK HISTORICAL SOCIETY TO 

OPERATE THE BARANOV MUSEUM  

 

 WHEREAS, the City owns real property located at 101 E. Marine Way, Kodiak, Alaska, 

and the building located thereon known as the Baranov Museum (“Museum”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Kodiak Historical Society currently operates a historical museum at the 

Museum, consisting of a collection of artifacts, exhibits, photographs, documents and other items 

owned by the Kodiak Historical Society (“Collection”); and 

 

WHEREAS, because of the Kodiak Historical Society’s experience operating the 

Museum and its ownership of the Collection, the Kodiak Historical Society is the only source for 

such services, and it is in the best interest of City and its residents that City contract with the 

Kodiak Historical Society for such services on a sole source basis under Kodiak City Code 

3.12.070(d).  

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Kodiak, Alaska, 

as follows: 

 

Section 1: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in Kodiak City Code Chapter 18.20, the 

Council of the City of Kodiak hereby authorizes the Contract for Museum 

Services with the Kodiak Historical Society for a term commencing July 1, 2014, 

and ending June 30, 2016, for the operation of the Museum. 

 

Section 2: The form and content of the Contract for Museum Services hereby are in all 

respects authorized, approved and confirmed, and the City Manager hereby is 

authorized, empowered and directed to execute and deliver the Contract for 

Museum Services to the Kodiak Historical Society behalf of the City, in 

substantially the form and content now before this meeting but with such changes, 

modifications, additions and deletions therein as she shall deem necessary, 

desirable or appropriate, the execution thereof to constitute conclusive evidence 

of approval of any and all changes, modifications, additions or deletions therein 

from the form and content of said document now before this meeting, and from 

and after the execution and delivery of said document, the City Manager hereby is 

authorized, empowered and directed to do all acts and things and to execute all 

documents as may be necessary to carry out and comply with the provisions of the 

Contract for Museum Services as executed. 

 

Section 3: The Contract for Museum Services authorized by this ordinance is subject to the 

requirements of City Charter Section V-17. Therefore, if one or more referendum 

petitions with signatures are properly filed within one month after the passage and 

publication of this ordinance, this ordinance shall not go into effect until the 

15

cperkins
Text Box
Attachment A



Ordinance No. 1328 

Page 2 of 2 

 

petition or petitions are finally found to be illegal and/or insufficient, or, if any 

such petition is found legal and sufficient, until the ordinance is approved at an 

election by a majority of the qualified voters voting on the question. If no 

referendum petition with signatures is filed, this ordinance shall go into effect one 

month after its passage and publication. 

 

CITY OF KODIAK 

 

 

 

   MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

  CITY CLERK 

 

First Reading:  December 11, 2014 

Second Reading:   

Effective Date:  

16



Museum Services Contract FY2015 – FY2016 

City of Kodiak/ Kodiak Historical Society 

Contract No. 28113  Page 1 of 6 

 

CITY OF KODIAK 

CONTRACT NO. 218113 

MUSEUM SERVICES 

 

 

CONTRACT FOR MUSEUM SERVICES dated as of July 1, 2014 by and between the City of 

Kodiak, an Alaska municipal corporation (“City”), whose address is 710 Mill Bay Road, Kodiak 

Alaska, and the Kodiak Historical Society, an Alaska nonprofit corporation (“Contractor”), 

whose address is 101 E. Marine Way, Kodiak Alaska. 

 

WHEREAS, City owns real property located at 101 E. Marine Way, Kodiak, Alaska, and the 

building located thereon known as the Baranov Museum (“Museum”); and 

 

WHEREAS, Contractor currently operates a historical museum at the Museum, consisting of a 

collection of artifacts, exhibits, photographs, documents and other items owned by Contractor 

(“Collection”); and 

 

WHEREAS, because of Contractor’s experience operating the Museum and its ownership of the 

Collection, Contractor is the only source for the services that it is to provide under this Contract, 

and it is in the best interest of City and its residents that City contract with Contractor for such 

services on a sole source basis under Kodiak City Code 3.12.070(d).  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the premises, and the terms, covenants, 

conditions, and provisions contained herein, it is the parties agree as follows: 

 

ARTICLE I 

 

Provision of Services, Term, Compensation 

 

Section 1.1. Agreement to Provide Services. Contractor shall operate the Museum and provide 

museum services for the City as described in Article II. 

 

Section 1.2. Term of Contract. The term of this contract commences July 1, 2014, and expires 

June 30, 2016, provided that either party may terminate this contract upon thirty (30) days 

written notice to the other party.  

 

Section 1.3. Compensation. City shall pay Contractor the following annual fees for the services 

that Contractor provides under this contract. The annual fee shall be payable to Contractor in 

advance in equal quarterly installments on the first days of July, October, January and April; 

provided that the first quarterly installment shall be due on the day following the effective date of 

City Council approval of this contract.  

(a) For the period from July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015: $90,000, plus an amount not 

to exceed $950.00 for fire suppression system costs. 

(b) For the period from July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2016: $92,700, plus an amount not 

to exceed $950.00 for fire suppression system costs.  

17

cperkins
Text Box
Attachment B



Museum Services Contract FY2015 – FY2016 

City of Kodiak/ Kodiak Historical Society 

Contract No. 28113  Page 2 of 6 

 

ARTICLE II 

Scope of Services 

 

Section 2.1. Scope of Work in General. Contractor shall provide museum operation services at 

the Museum, including without limitation collections care, management of Contractor’s archives, 

exhibitions, educational programs, and building stewardship.  

 

Section 2.2. Specific Museum Management Duties. Subject only to the limitations set forth in 

this Contract, Contractor shall have, and hereby agrees to undertake and assume, full and 

complete control and discretion in the management and operation of the Museum during the term 

of this contract, including without limitation the following:.  

(a) Employ, pay, supervise, and discharge all employees as deemed necessary by 

Contractor for the operation of the Museum; 

(b) Adopt and implement all policies relating to the acquisition, accession, loan, care, 

storage, deaccession, and disposal of the Collection in accordance with the standards defined by 

the American Alliance of Museums; 

(c) Adopt and implement the exhibition, interpretation, display and public access of the 

Collection in accordance with the standards defined by the American Alliance of Museums; 

(d) Adopt and implement the historical, educational and research policies, programs and 

activities of the Museum; 

(e) Properly maintain all Collection inventory records, accession records, condition 

assessment and conservation records, and exhibition records;  

(f) Adopt and implement the budgetary and fiscal policies of the Museum, including the 

establishment of admission fees and other fees and charges for other program services; 

(g) Keep and maintain the financial books and records of the Museum in accordance with 

generally accepted accounting principles; 

(h) Adopt and implement the building and maintenance policies for the Museum; 

(i) Adopt and implement the best practices for building stewardship of the Museum; 

(j) Adopt and implement policies relating to the ancillary activities and services offered at 

the Museum; and 

(k) Adopt and implement policies relating to the promotion and publicity of the Museum. 

In performing its duties under this Section, Contractor shall exercise the same degree of care and 

skill exercised by nonprofit corporate owners and managers of similar local/regional history 

museums in the United States and shall comply in all material respects with all laws applicable to 

the conduct of its business and the use and operation of the Museum. 

 

Section 2.3 Public Museum. Contractor shall operate the Museum as a facility open to the 

general public, subject to such reasonable rules and regulations as Contractor may promulgate in 

its discretion from time to time regarding matters that include without limitation admission fees; 

days and hours of operation; the safety of employees and the general public; the safety, 

protection and security of the Collection; the anonymity of donors who desire anonymity; and, to 

the extent required by law, the confidentiality of employee records and business records. 

 

Section 2.4. Collection. Contractor shall have full responsibility for the maintenance, care, 

documentation and use of the Collection. The accession and deaccession of Collection items as 

18



Museum Services Contract FY2015 – FY2016 

City of Kodiak/ Kodiak Historical Society 

Contract No. 28113  Page 3 of 6 

 

well as their management, care, documentation and use shall be governed by Contractor’s 

Collection Management Policy and in accordance with standards defined by the American 

Alliance of Museums. The Collection will be used for exhibitions, research and public programs 

at the discretion of Contractor in accordance with its mission and in order to provide museum 

services to the City.  

 

Section 2.5. Contractor Employment Responsibilities. All services required under this 

Contract shall be performed by Contractor or under its supervision. Contractor shall employ at its 

own expense all personnel required to perform Contractor’s services under this Contract in a 

timely and proper manner. Such personnel shall not be considered contractors or employees of 

the City, and the City shall have no responsibility or liability whatsoever to any Contractor 

personnel, or for their acts or omissions.  

 

Section 2.6. Alterations and Improvements to Museum. Contractor may make whatever 

nonstructural alterations or improvements to the Museum that it deems necessary or desirable in 

the best interests of the Museum. Contractor shall make no structural alterations or additions to 

the Museum or any associated City property without the written consent of the City. Unless 

otherwise provided in such written consent, any structural improvements or additions constructed 

by the Contractor shall become the City property upon substantial completion. All such 

nonstructural or structural alterations, improvements and additions, regardless of how funded, 

shall be part of the Museum real property and shall be subject to the terms of this Agreement.  

 

Section 2.7. Personal Property. Contractor may furnish, install and maintain at the Museum 

any and all personal property which Contractor deems necessary or desirable in connection with 

the operation of the Museum. All tangible personal property acquired by City or Contractor and 

installed in or located at the Museum, regardless of how funded, shall be deemed to be subject to 

the terms of this Contract. All personal property installed in or located at the Museum shall be 

the property of Contractor. Contractor may alter, rehabilitate and improve such personal property 

in such manner, as it deems necessary or desirable in the best interests of the Museum.  

 

Section 2.8. No Liens. In performing any work required or permitted under this contract, 

Contractor shall keep the Museum free of all liens, and hold the City harmless from liability for 

any such liens, including costs and attorney fees. 

 

 

ARTICLE III 

Payment of Expenses 

 

Section 3.1. In General. Except as this Article provides otherwise, Contractor shall bear all 

costs and pay all expenses incurred in providing the services required under this contract. 

 

Section 3.2. Utilities. City shall pay the costs of the following utility services provided to the 

Museum: fuel oil, heat, electricity, water and sewer. Contractor shall pay the costs of 

telecommunications utility services and, except as provided in the preceding sentence, any and 

all other utilities provided to Contractor at the Museum. 

19



Museum Services Contract FY2015 – FY2016 

City of Kodiak/ Kodiak Historical Society 

Contract No. 28113  Page 4 of 6 

 

 

Section 3.3. Repairs and Maintenance.  
(a) Contractor shall provide at its expense the following at the Museum: 

(1) Interior janitorial services 

(2) Replacement of light bulbs and receptacles as needed 

(3) Exhibit construction and maintenance 

(4) Flower beds and plant box plantings and maintenance 

(5) Fire alarm and suppression system annual inspections  

(6) Boiler system annual inspections 

(b) City shall provide at its expense the following at the Museum: 

(a) Maintenance of electrical, water and sewer utility facilities 

(b) Snow removal from the parking lot and pedestrian walkways 

(c) Lawn mowing and general landscaping 

(d) Maintenance or replacement of sidewalk and parking lot pavement 

(e) Structural building maintenance or replacements when funds are available 

 

ARTICLE IV 

Indemnification and Insurance 

 

Section 4.1. Indemnification. To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor agrees to 

defend, indemnify, and hold harmless City, its elected and appointed officials, employees, and 

volunteers against any and all liabilities, claims, demands, lawsuits, or losses, including costs and 

attorney fees incurred in defense thereof, arising out of or in any way connected or associated 

with this contract. 

 

Section 4.2. Insurance.  
(a) Contractor, at its expense, shall provide the following insurance coverages for its 

performance under this contract, and shall provide to City certificates of insurance and/or 

policies acceptable to City therefore at the time this contract is executed: 

(1) Commercial General Liability Insurance. Contractor shall maintain 

Commercial General Liability Insurance with a minimum of $1,000,000 per occurrence 

and/or aggregate combined single limit, personal injury, bodily injury, and property 

damage. 

(2) Workers' Compensation Insurance. Contractor shall provide and maintain, for 

all employees of Contractor engaged in work under this contract, Workers' Compensation 

Insurance as required by AS 23.30.045 or any other applicable statutes or regulations. 

Contractor shall be responsible for Workers' Compensation Insurance for any 

subcontractor who directly or indirectly provides services under this Contract. 

(b) Additional Insurance Requirements. Each policy of insurance that Contractor 

provides under this section shall:  

(1) List the as additional insureds City, including all elected and appointed City 

officials, all City employees and volunteers, all City boards, commissions and/or 

authorities and their board members, employees, and volunteers, and waive subrogation 

in favor of the foregoing;  

20



Museum Services Contract FY2015 – FY2016 

City of Kodiak/ Kodiak Historical Society 

Contract No. 28113  Page 5 of 6 

 

(2) Provide coverage that is primary to City and not contributing with any other 

insurance or similar protection available to City, whether other available coverage be 

primary, contributing, or excess;  

(3) Require sixty (60) days written notice of cancellation non-renewal, reduction 

and/or material change addressed to: City Clerk, 710 Mill Bay Road, Room 220, Kodiak, 

AK 99615. 

(c) Continuation of Coverage. If the above coverage expires during the term of this 

Contract, Contractor shall deliver renewal certificates and/or policies to City at least ten (10) 

days prior to the expiration date. Contractor shall not commence operations under this Contract 

until it has obtained the coverage required under the terms of this Contract. All coverage shall be 

with insurance carriers licensed and admitted to do business in the State of Alaska and 

acceptable to City. If Contractor fails to comply with the insurance requirements of this contract, 

City may terminate this contract on ten (10) days written notice. Contractor covenants to 

maintain all insurance policies required in this Contract for the period of time in which a person 

may commence a civil action as prescribed by the applicable statute of limitations. The coverage 

required by this Contract shall cover all claims arising in connection with Contractor’s 

performance under this contract, whether or not asserted during the term of this contract and 

even though judicial proceedings may not be commenced until after this contract expires. 

 

ARTICLE V 

Miscellaneous 

 

Section 5.1. Independent Contractor. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained 

herein, this contract shall not be deemed or construed to make the parties hereto partners or joint 

venturers, to render either party liable for any of the debts or obligations of the other, or to make 

either party the agent of the other or to bind or obligate the other in any manner to any third 

party. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the employees of Contractor are not City 

employees and are not entitled to any of the benefits City provides for its employees, including 

without limitation, health, life or disability insurance, sick or annual leave, or worker’s 

compensation.  

 

Section 5.2. Authority of Signers. Each individual executing this contract hereby represents and 

warrants that he or she has the capacity set forth on the signature pages hereof with full power 

and authority to bind the party on whose behalf he or she is executing this contract to the terms 

hereof. 

 

Section 5.3. Entire Agreement; Amendment. This contract constitutes the entire agreement 

and understanding of the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof, and there are no other 

prior or contemporaneous written or oral agreements, undertakings, promises, warranties, or 

covenants with respect thereto not contained herein. This Agreement may be amended only by a 

written instrument executed by each of the parties hereto. 

 

Section 5.4. No Waiver. No waiver of any condition or provision of this contract by any party 

shall be valid unless in writing signed by such party. No such waiver shall be deemed or 

construed as a waiver of any other or similar provision or of any future event, act, or default. 

21



Museum Services Contract FY2015 – FY2016 

City of Kodiak/ Kodiak Historical Society 

Contract No. 28113  Page 6 of 6 

 

 

Section 5.5. Severability. If any provision of this contract is deemed unenforceable in whole or 

part, such provision shall be limited to the extent necessary to render the same valid or shall be 

deemed excised from this contract and replaced by a valid provision as close in meaning and 

intent as the excised provision as circumstances require, and this contract shall be construed as if 

said provision had been incorporated herein as so limited or as so replaced, as the case may be. 

 

Section 5.6. Assignment or Delegation. Contractor may not assign its rights or delegate its 

duties under this contract, or any part of it, except with the prior written consent of City. 

 

Section 5.7. Governing Law. This contract shall be governed by the laws of the State of Alaska 

and any suit or legal action hereunder shall be brought only in the courts of said State, in the 

Third Judicial District at Kodiak. 

 

Section 5.8. Notice. Any notice required by this contract must be hand delivered or sent by first 

class mail to the appropriate party at the address set forth above the signatures below, or any 

other address which the party subsequently designates in writing. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have hereunder set their hands this ____ day of 

_____________ 2015. 

 

CITY OF KODIAK      KODIAK HISTORICAL SOCIETY 

710 Mill Bay Road      101 E Marine Way 

Kodiak, AK 99615      Kodiak, AK 99615 

 

 

              

Aimée Kniaziowski, City Manager    Michael Bach, President 

 

Attest:        Witness: 

 

 

              

Debra L. Marlar, City Clerk 

22



December 4, 2013 

 
Aimee Kniaziowski, City Manager 

Mayor Pat Branson 

City Council Members 

City of Kodiak 

P.O. Box 1397 

Kodiak, Alaska 99615 

 

Dear Ms. Kniaziowski, Mayor Branson and Council Members, 

The City of Kodiak and the Kodiak Historical Society have been in partnership to care for and 

operate the Baranov Museum since 1972, when the City accepted the ownership of the Russian 

American magazin from the Alaska Housing Authority. Together we have built a museum unlike 

anything else in the state of Alaska. The Museum, Alaska’s oldest building, is also the only Alaskan 

structure that encompasses the history of both the Russian-American Company and the Alaska 

Commercial Company – two trading empires that shaped the development of Alaska for 150 years. 

The collections housed within are the authentic and tangible remnants of this remarkable history. We 

sincerely appreciate the City’s ongoing stewardship.  Though our partnership has functioned well to 

protect the magazin and the history of Kodiak, our agreement has never had a formal contract, leaving 

both our organizations and the building vulnerable.   

The City of Kodiak owns our physical building and provides utilities as an in-kind 

contribution of $16,400 for FY2013. The City of Kodiak currently provides $77,500 to the Kodiak 

Historical Society to operate the Baranov Museum.  The Kodiak Historical Society uses these funds to 

support its basic operating costs and provide cost share for federal, state and local grants to fund 

special projects.   

The contribution from the City provides for less than 22% of our annual income with an 

additional 2% with the in kind utilities.  With this money we provide the City with vital museum 

services including operation of the Baranov Museum five days a week in the winter and six days in 

the summer; care and preservation of an ever-increasing collection of artifacts, photographs, 

publications and documents significant to the history of our community; the provision of interpretive 

tours of the Baranov Museum to visiting groups including school children, historical researchers, 

independent travelers, delegations and other special guests, and to any group upon request; the 

provision of educational programming to the Kodiak community including research lectures, art 

exhibits and workshops and monthly children’s art and educational activities; and creating new 

temporary exhibits, such as Kodiak’s Filipino Community Stories ( October 2012 – May 2013) and 

Found on Site: Objects From Within The Magazin  (May 2013 - present) that offer new and dynamic 

learning opportunities. 

The City's contribution provides less than 25% of our operating expenses.  As a healthy 

nonprofit, we have diverse revenue streams.  We can and do secure grant funds for expanding 

programs and special initiatives, but it is nearly impossible to fund basic operational needs through 

competitive grants. 

 

KODIAK HISTORICAL SOCIETY 
 

101 MARINE WAY, KODIAK, ALASKA 99615 

(907) 486-5920 • baranov@ak.net  

www.baranovmuseum.org 

23

cperkins
Text Box
Attachment C



   

The additional amount we ask from the city would raise the city contribution to nearly 30%.  

The funds would allow us to secure larger grants to offer more programs to the community, increase 

the accessibility of our collections and archives, renovate our exhibits and better preserve and share 

Kodiak’s history.  A built in 3% compounded increase would allow us to keep up with the increased 

cost of operations each year. 

The partnership with the City of Kodiak allows us to care for our unique and irreplaceable 

building, the Russian American magazin.  Consistent local government support is an important 

indicator that funding agencies look for when considering whether the Baranov Museum merits their 

financial investment.  In just the past five years, the Society has raised $665,000 through federal and 

state grants, state legislative requests and local fundraising solely for much needed restoration on the 

building, including restoration of the windows, full exterior paint, a new electrical system and fire 

suppression system.  The Society is fully committed to the continued preservation of the Baranov 

Museum building and part of the museum services offered in the contract with the City are building 

stewardship, including applying for grants, legislative requests and local fundraising, identifying and 

managing the needs of the building, seeking expert recommendations on the best ways to protect this 

National Historic Landmark and providing administration services for any restoration project. 

Government contributions to museums and other cultural institutions benefit more than just 

historic buildings and objects.    Museums rank among the top three family vacation destinations and 

businesses factor access to cultural resources into their decisions to relocate.  Supporting cultural and 

heritage institutions supports the economic well being of communities; governments that support the 

arts see a return on their investment on average of over $7 in taxes for every $1 the government 

appropriates.   The Society uses the contribution of the City as cost share for grants in addition to its 

own funds.  Last year, as an example, the Society received $50,000 in grants, each of which required a 

1:1 cost share.  Much of those funds are expended locally through paying local businesses or staff, 

funneling that money back into our local economy. 

The relationship between the City of Kodiak and the Kodiak Historical Society is not unusual.  

According to a 2009 survey, at least five other cities in Alaska own the building housing the local 

museum while a nonprofit corporation owns the collections and operates the museum: Sitka, Wasilla, 

Haines, Cordova and Unalaska.  All of these museums are funded by the city at or above 50%.  Prior 

to 2004, the City of Kodiak funded the Baranov Museum at 35% or $92,000.  Costs of nearly every 

service provided by the Society continue to increase, but a return to 2004 funding levels would allow 

the Society to expand and improve the museum services it currently provides. 

Through the Baranov Museum, The Kodiak Historical Society creates opportunities for the 

public to explore the cultural history of Kodiak Island and neighboring communities. Our collections 

are catalysts in the learning process and the museum is a learning place where knowledge is 

discovered, shared and exchanged.  The City of Kodiak is instrumental in the operation of the Baranov 

Museum.  A contract between the City and the Society would protect both organizations and solidify 

our forty year partnership.   

Most sincerely, 

 

 

 

 

Tiffany Brunson 

Executive Director, Kodiak Historical Society 

24



KODIAK HISTORICAL SOCIETY -- OPERATING BUDGET

REVENUE FY15

Budget Draft

Grants

City Grant 90,000.00$                       

Borough Grant 9,000.00$                         

City Inkind Grant 16,000.00$                       

Museums Alaska/Rasmuson 2,820.00$                         

Spouses Association of Kodiak 500.00$                            

Other Grants 2,000.00$                         

Total Grants 120,320.00$                     

Contributed Income

Donations 17,000.00$                       

Foundations 5,000.00$                         

Total Contributed 22,000.00$                       

Earned Income

Membership 4,000.00$                         

Admissions 16,000.00$                       

Education Programs 1,000.00$                         

Fundraising 8,500.00$                         

Archival Revenue 200.00$                            

Store Sales 80,000.00$                       

Tot Earned Inc 109,700.00$                     

TOT. REVENUE 252,020.00$                     

FY2015 Draft Budget

25



EXPENDITURES FY15

Budget Draft

Wages/Benefits 195,000.00$                     

Store Goods Cost 35,000.00$                       

In-Kind Utilities 16,000.00$                       

Finanical Services 7,500.00$                         

Exhibits 500.00$                            

Collections Care 4,320.00$                         

Acquisitions 5,000.00$                         

Equipment 500.00$                            

Marketing & Promotions 6,500.00$                         

Ed. Program supplies 1,500.00$                         

Supplies 3,000.00$                         

Communications 7,000.00$                         

Travel/Education 6,000.00$                         

Printing/Graphic Design 3,000.00$                         

Repairs/Maintence 2,500.00$                         

Insurance 2,200.00$                         

Meetings/Catering 1,000.00$                         

Fundraising 1,500.00$                         

Dues/Subscrip 1,500.00$                         

TOT. EXPENDS. 299,520.00                       

NET PROCEEDS (47,500.00)                        

Non-Operating Income

Interest Earned

Realized Gains/Losses

Unrealized Gains/Losses

Other Miscellaneous

Total Non-Operating

FY2015 Draft Budget

26



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(This page left intentionally blank.) 

27



28



29



30

cperkins
Text Box
Attachment A



31



32



33



34



35

cperkins
Text Box
Attachment B



36

cperkins
Text Box
Attachment C



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NEW BUSINESS 

37



38



JANUARY 8, 2015 

Agenda Item V a. Memo Page 2 of 2 

 

lien without affecting its operations beyond the loss of the New Crane through lien foreclosure. In 

contrast, foreclosure of a lien securing Horizon Lines’ general corporate financing obligations could 

effectively put Horizon Lines out of business. Regardless of the presence of such a lien, the City is 

subject to the risk that Horizon Lines could go out of business. Thus, the City does not incur any 

significant additional risk in permitting such a lien. The recommended changes do not impact the 

financial terms of the agreement, and the City maintains the right to purchase the New Crane under the 

terms of the contract.  

 

ALTERNATIVES:  

1) Pass Ordinance No. 1329 in the first reading authorizing the amendment of the PUA as drafted. 

This is staff’s recommendation. 

2) Council could choose to renegotiate the agreement or reject it entirely and continue to use the 

month-to-month agreements or tariff rates. This may affect the City’s ability to maintain a viable 

operation at Pier II and Pier III and is not recommended by staff. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Amendment to the Preferential Use Agreement will not impact the 

financial terms of the agreement and continues to give the City the right to purchase the New Crane if 

Horizon Lines ceases operation in Kodiak or offers to sell the crane to a third party.  

 

LEGAL: The City Attorney drafted Ordinance No. 1329 and the recommended changes to section VIII-

A of the PUA. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends City Council approve this ordinance in order to 

maintain the agreements with Horizon Lines of Alaska, LLC, and to ensure uninterrupted freight service 

to and from City-owned Port facilities. 

 

ACTING CITY MANAGER’S COMMENTS: As Acting City Manager for this agreement and the 

lead for the City negotiating team, I recommend the City Council pass Ordinance No. 1329 in the first 

reading. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:  

Attachment A: Ordinance No. 1329 

Attachment B: Amended Preferential Use Agreement 

Attachment C: Ordinance No. 1326 

 

 

PROPOSED MOTION:  

Move to pass Ordinance No. 1329 in the first reading and advance to second reading and public 

hearing at the next regular or special Council meeting.  

39



Ordinance No. 1329 

Page 1 of 2 

CITY OF KODIAK 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 1329 
 

 AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KODIAK AUTHORIZ-

ING THE CITY TO ENTER INTO AN AMENDMENT TO THE PREFERENTIAL USE 

AGREEMENT WITH HORIZON LINES OF ALASKA, LLC 
 

 WHEREAS, City Charter Article V–17 requires that any contract which by its terms will 

not be fully executed within five years and which cannot be terminated by the City upon not 

more than one month’s notice without penalty, and the sale or lease of any City property, real or 

personal, or the sale or other disposal of any interest therein, the value of which property, lease, 

or interest is more than $30,000, shall be made only by ordinance; and 

 

 WHEREAS, by Ordinance Number 1326, the City authorized a ten-year Preferential Use 

Agreement (“PUA”) to provide Horizon Lines of Alaska, LLC preferential berthing rights at the 

Port of Kodiak Pier III Terminal; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the terms of the PUA provide for Horizon Lines of Alaska, LLC to provide 

a new 100-foot gauge container crane (“New Crane”) on the new Pier III; and 

 

 WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend the terms of the PUA to reflect that the New Crane 

may be subject to a lien securing the general corporate financing obligations of Horizon Lines, 

LLC. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Kodiak, Alaska: 

 

Section 1: The Council of the City of Kodiak hereby authorizes the amendment of the 

Preferential Use Agreement with Horizon Lines of Alaska, LLC to provide that 

the New Crane may be subject to a lien securing the general corporate financing 

obligations of Horizon Lines, LLC. 

 

Section 2: The agreement amended by this ordinance is subject to the requirements of City 

Charter Section V-17. Therefore, if one or more referendum petitions with signa-

tures are properly filed within one month after the passage and publication of this 

ordinance, this ordinance shall not go into effect until the petition or petitions are 

finally found to be illegal and/or insufficient, or, if any such petition is found legal 

and sufficient, until the ordinance is approved at election by a majority of the 

qualified voters voting on the question. If no referendum petition with signatures 

is filed, this ordinance shall go into effect one month after its passage and publica-

tion. 

 

  CITY OF KODIAK 

 

 

 

    MAYOR 

40

cperkins
Text Box
Attachment A



Ordinance No. 1329 

Page 2 of 2 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

 
 

CITY CLERK 

 

First Reading:  

Second Reading:  

Effective Date:  

41



  

City of Kodiak/Horizon Lines of Alaska, LLC 

Preferential Use Agreement 

Ord. No. 1329/City Contract 217720 

Page 1 of 15 

PORT OF KODIAK 

PREFERENTIAL USE AGREEMENT 

(Pier III) 

City of Kodiak and Horizon Lines of Alaska, LLC 

City Contract 217720 

This Preferential Use Agreement (“Agreement”) is made and entered into as of _______1, 2014, 

between the City of Kodiak, an Alaska municipal corporation (“City”), and Horizon Lines of 

Alaska, LLC (“Horizon Lines”), a limited liability company organized under the laws of the state 

of Delaware.  

WHEREAS, Horizon Lines and the City have entered into a Terminal Operation Contract and a 

Warehouse Lease Agreement, both dated ________ 1, 2014, which together with this Agreement 

provide for Operator’s use and occupancy of facilities at Port of Kodiak Piers II and III. 

WHEREAS, Horizon Lines has agreed herein to install a 100 foot gauge crane for use on Pier III 

and to make a minimum number of container vessel calls at Pier III annually, and leases all 

storage areas, marshalling yard and buildings at the Pier III Terminal, and it is therefore 

appropriate that the City grant Horizon Lines the preferential use of the Pier III Terminal as 

provided herein. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, and the terms, covenants, conditions, and 

agreements contained herein and further stated in the Terminal Operation Contract and the 

Warehouse Lease Agreement, Horizon Lines and the City hereby agree as follows: 

I. DESCRIPTION OF PREMISES 

The premises that are the subject of this Agreement consist of the terminal and adjacent 

property at Pier III as further described below (“Premises”). 

A. At the commencement of this Agreement, the Premises consists of 4.46 acres for freight 

operations; a container terminal pier, 490 feet by 64 feet with an overall length of 880 

feet, bollard to bollard; and a 30-ton Paceco container crane (“Old Crane”); as depicted in 

Exhibit A to this Agreement.  

B. The City presently is preparing to construct a new Pier III dock structure, consisting of a 

new 330-ft. long, 110-ft wide dock structure extending eastward from the existing Pier 

III, plus associated backland terminal area, which should be substantially complete on or 

about June 30, 2015, as depicted in Exhibit A to this Agreement.  Upon its substantial 

completion, the new Pier III will become part of the Premises.  As further described 

below, Horizon Lines will provide, at its own expense, a 100-foot gauge container crane 

(“New Crane”) on the new Pier III to replace the Old Crane on the existing Pier III.  

Horizon Lines will own the New Crane, and the New Crane will not be part of the 

Premises. 

II. USE OF PREMISES; PREFERENTIAL BERTHING 

A. The City hereby grants Horizon Lines the right to use and occupy the Premises in 

connection with its transportation business and related activities during the term of this 

Agreement. 

42

cperkins
Text Box
Attachment B



  

City of Kodiak/Horizon Lines of Alaska, LLC 

Preferential Use Agreement 

Ord. No. 1329/City Contract 217720 

Page 2 of 15 

B. Horizon Lines vessels calling to load and discharge containerized cargo on a scheduled 

basis shall be entitled to preferential berthing rights at Pier III in accordance with the 

terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement.  

1. Preferential Berthing and Old Crane Use Rights. 

a. Horizon Lines shall have the preferential right to use the Pier III dock, 

berth and Old Crane for purposes of mooring, docking, and loading or 

discharging cargo on or from Horizon Lines’ vessels, including ships, 

barges, or other watercraft which are owned, operated, or chartered by or 

for Horizon Lines or any affiliated or related company, or which are used 

in connection with any of Horizon Lines’ freight operations, or a vessel 

owned or operated by an entity with which Horizon Lines has a 

connecting carrier, consortium, or rationalization agreement, if, and to the 

extent that, said vessel is carrying cargo on Horizon Lines’ behalf.  

Horizon Lines’ preferential right to use the Old Crane terminates upon the 

earlier to occur of (i) one year after the date on which the New Crane 

becomes operational, and (ii) the date when removal of the Old Crane has 

been completed. 

b. The preferential right of use provided by this paragraph is defined to mean 

that Horizon Lines shall be accorded the right, after furnishing a vessel 

schedule, to berth a vessel and utilize the Old Crane in preference to any 

other user immediately upon the vessel's arrival in Kodiak harbor, 

provided that (a) the vessel arrives during a period of twelve (12) hours 

before or after the arrival time designated in a vessel schedule on file with 

the City Harbormaster (which schedule may be changed from time-to-time 

upon ten (10) days’ written notice), or (b) the vessel arrives at an arrival 

time designated at least eight (8) hours in advance by radio or other 

message from Horizon Lines to the City Harbormaster. 

c. The preferential right provided herein shall apply whether or not the Pier 

III dock, berth and Old Crane are being used by any other vessel, and any 

such other vessel, barge or craft occupying the berth at the time of arrival 

of Horizon Lines’ vessel during a preferential berthing period shall be 

removed immediately from the berth at no cost to Horizon Lines. 

d. Horizon Lines shall make a reasonable effort to vacate the berth within six 

(6) hours after working cargo; provided however, should weather 

conditions prevent the vessel from leaving safely, an extension may be 

granted by the City Harbormaster. 

e. Horizon Lines agrees that during the term of this Agreement its Kodiak 

representative, upon request, will furnish the City Harbormaster with 

information as to the position, estimated time of arrival in Kodiak, and 

estimated port time of any vessel due to arrive in Kodiak which will claim 

preferential berthing rights under this Agreement. 

43



  

City of Kodiak/Horizon Lines of Alaska, LLC 

Preferential Use Agreement 

Ord. No. 1329/City Contract 217720 

Page 3 of 15 

2. Preferential Use of Storage, Marshaling Areas, and Facilities Other than the Dock, 

Berth and Old Crane. Horizon Lines shall have a continuing preferential right to 

use and occupy the storage, marshaling areas, parking areas, and all 

improvements included in the Pier III Terminal other than the dock, berth and Old 

Crane for its freight operations, including without limitation the operations of 

loading, unloading, working, parking, and storage of cargo, vans, chassis, trucks, 

and other equipment; provided that the City reserves from this grant of 

preferential right the use of access ways shown on Exhibit A for the transit of 

cargo from non-Horizon Lines vessels between Pier III and public rights-of-way. 

“Preferential right” as used in this paragraph is defined to mean that Horizon 

Lines' use and occupancy of the Premises shall have first priority over any use 

and occupancy of the Premises by others which interferes with Horizon Lines’ 

operation, at no cost to Horizon Lines other than as elsewhere set forth in this 

Agreement. 

3. Reservation of Secondary Rights. The City specifically reserves to itself and for 

non-Horizon Lines vessels secondary rights to use and occupy the Pier III 

Terminal, or portions thereof, subject to the priorities of use accorded to Horizon 

Lines under this Agreement. The City agrees that it will issue tariffs governing the 

rates, charges, and conditions for the secondary use of the Pier III Terminal by 

others, and shall assess reasonable rates and charges to secondary users of the 

facility. 

4. Berthing of Horizon Lines Barges. In addition to preferential berthing for loading 

and unloading cargo as provided above, barges owned, chartered, or operated by 

Horizon Lines shall be allowed to berth at Pier III while not engaged in cargo 

operations, unless the City Harbormaster requests their removal to allow the use 

of Pier III by other vessels. In such event, the City Harbormaster will notify the 

tug captain as early as possible of the time the barge must clear the pier.  

III. OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE OF CRANES. 

A. Operation, Maintenance and Removal of Old Crane.  

1. Horizon Lines shall provide competent and qualified operators for the Old Crane 

who shall be available on a 24-hour basis during the time that it is operational, to 

provide crane services to vessels utilizing the Pier III Terminal. Horizon Lines 

shall be responsible for all costs of operating and maintaining the Old Crane.  

2. Third parties requiring use of the Old Crane shall request such services through 

Horizon Lines.  Third parties shall be charged for the use of the Old Crane at the 

rate of $1,000.00 per hour, with a minimum of one hour for equipment warm-up 

plus a minimum of one hour for equipment usage. Horizon Lines shall retain 

$850.00 per hour of this amount and shall remit the balance of $150.00 per hour 

to the City.  

3. Within one year after the New Crane becomes operational, Horizon Lines shall be 

responsible for all costs of decommissioning, removing and disposing of the Old 

Crane.  At time that demolition of the Old Crane is to commence, the City shall 

44



  

City of Kodiak/Horizon Lines of Alaska, LLC 

Preferential Use Agreement 

Ord. No. 1329/City Contract 217720 

Page 4 of 15 

transfer title to the Old Crane to Horizon Lines or to a third party designated by 

Horizon Lines for this purpose, and Horizon Lines may retain any proceeds from 

the salvage, scrapping or sale of the Old Crane. 

B. Installation, Operation and Maintenance of New Crane. 

1. Commencing upon the later to occur of (i) determination by the City or its 

representative that the new Pier III is substantially complete under the terms of 

the contract for its construction (“Substantial Completion”), and (ii) Kodiak 

Electric Association completion of the power line extension to Pier III and the 

flywheels needed for the operation of the New Crane, and continuing thereafter 

for the duration of this Agreement, the City grants Horizon Lines an easement to 

install, operate and maintain the New Crane on the crane rails located on the new 

Pier III.  The City may not grant any other entities the right to use the crane rails 

without Horizon Lines’ consent, but the City may grant to other entities the right 

to cross the easement or to install equipment or fixtures or other improvements in 

the easement that do not interfere with Horizon Lines’ use of the easement.  The 

City shall install on Pier III in time for the commencement of operation of the 

New Crane a 12.47kva isolation transformer for the protection of the New Crane.  

Upon the installation of the transformer, Horizon Lines shall reimburse the City’s 

actual cost of acquiring and installing the transformer, which is estimated to be 

approximately $60,000. 

2. Horizon Lines shall maintain sole authority for and control of the New Crane.  

Horizon Lines shall provide competent and qualified operators for the New Crane 

who shall be available on a 24-hour basis commencing upon the New Crane 

becoming operational and continuing thereafter for the duration of this 

Agreement, to provide crane services to all vessels utilizing the Pier III Terminal, 

and may allow its use for other purposes at its discretion.  Horizon Lines shall be 

responsible for all costs of installing, operating and maintaining the New Crane. 

3. Horizon Lines shall charge third parties an hourly rate for the use of the New 

Crane based on comparable rates in the marketplace, with a minimum time 

requirement not greater than two hours.  Horizon Lines shall retain the entire 

amount of such charges.   

 

IV. PAYMENTS 

A. Horizon Lines shall pay to the City wharfage fees at the rates shown in the following 

table. Transhipped/transloaded cargo shall be subject to a single-move, one-time 

wharfage charge at the same rate. 

Year Rate per Ton Year Rate per Ton 

2014 $3.45  2019 $4.60  

2015 3.45  2020 4.72  

2016 3.45  2021 4.83  

45



  

City of Kodiak/Horizon Lines of Alaska, LLC 

Preferential Use Agreement 

Ord. No. 1329/City Contract 217720 

Page 5 of 15 

2017 3.80  2022 4.96  

2018 4.17  2023 5.08  

 

B. All Horizon Lines vessels (as described in Section II.B.1.a) shall pay dockage fees at the 

rates shown in the following table.  

Year Rate per Foot Year Rate per Foot 

2014 $1.62  2019 $2.27  

2015 1.62  2020 2.50  

2016 1.70  2021 2.75  

2017 1.87  2022 3.05  

2018 2.06  2023 3.64  

 

C. Horizon Lines shall submit to the City within ten days of the end of each month a 

statement detailing the vessel dockage and cargo tonnage handled during the previous 

month. 

 

D. Horizon Lines shall pay the City for use of the facilities depicted on Exhibit “A,” 

including the Old Crane until its replacement, and in addition to wharfage, dockage, and 

other fees or charges elsewhere specified in this Agreement, the monthly payments due 

on the first day of each month as shown in the table below.  

Year Monthly Payment Year Monthly Payment 

2014 $23,352.92 2019 $26,906.25 

2015 23,352.92 2020 27,578.91 

2016 23,352.92 2021 28,268.38 

2017 24,750.00 2022 28,975.09 

2018 26,250.00 2023 29,699.47 

 

E. Amounts payable by Horizon Lines for facilities or services under this Agreement 

supersede any charges for the same facilities or services under the Tariff for the Port of 

Kodiak Cargo Terminal.  Nothing in this Agreement reduces or modifies the liability of 

Horizon Lines for fees or charges for other facilities or services set out in the Tariff for 

the Port of Kodiak Cargo Terminal. 

F. All amounts due under this Agreement that are not paid within thirty days of the date of 

invoice thereafter shall bear interest at the rate of 12% per annum for as long as the 

delinquency continues. 

V. TERM OF AGREEMENT 

46



  

City of Kodiak/Horizon Lines of Alaska, LLC 

Preferential Use Agreement 

Ord. No. 1329/City Contract 217720 

Page 6 of 15 

A. Initial Term.  The term of his Agreement shall commence on ________ 1, 2014, and shall 

continue in full force and effect until midnight ______________, 2024, unless earlier 

terminated pursuant to this section.  

B. Renewal Terms.  This Agreement may be renewed for two consecutive additional five-

year periods (each a “Renewal Term”), by mutual agreement of the parties.  At least 

ninety (90) days’ prior to the expiration of the term then in effect, Horizon Lines shall 

provide written notice to the City of its desire to renew or not renew this Agreement for 

the next succeeding Renewal Term.  The City will then reply to Horizon Lines within 

fifteen (15) days whether it wishes to renew this Agreement.  If both parties agree to 

renew this Agreement, they shall then enter good faith negotiations to address any 

modifications to this Agreement requested by either party.  The failure of the parties to 

agree upon a renewal of this Agreement shall cause this Agreement to terminate at the 

end of the current term. 

C. The City may declare a default hereunder and terminate this Agreement, in addition to 

exercising any other available remedy, upon the occurrence of any of the following: 

1. The failure of Horizon Lines to pay any sum of money due under this Agreement 

within ten (10) days after the due date. 

2. The failure of Horizon Lines to perform or observe any covenant or condition of 

this Agreement, other than a default in the payment of money described in Section 

V.C.1, which is not cured within thirty (30) days after notice thereof from the City 

to Horizon Lines, unless the default is of a kind that may be cured, but not within 

such thirty (30)-day period, in which case no default shall be declared so long as 

Horizon Lines shall commence the curing of the default within such thirty (30) 

day period and thereafter shall diligently and continuously prosecute the curing of 

same. 

3. The commencement of a case under any chapter of the federal Bankruptcy Code 

by or against Horizon Lines, or the filing of a voluntary or involuntary petition 

proposing the adjudication of Horizon Lines as bankrupt or insolvent, or the 

reorganization of Horizon Lines, or an arrangement by Horizon Lines with its 

creditors, unless the petition is filed or case commenced by a party other than 

Horizon Lines and is withdrawn or dismissed within ninety (90) days after the 

date of its filing.  

4. The admission in writing by Horizon Lines of its inability to pay its debts when 

due; the appointment of a receiver or trustee for the business or property of 

Horizon Lines, unless such appointment shall be vacated within ten (10) days 

after its entry; Horizon Lines making an assignment for the benefit of creditors; or 

the voluntary or involuntary dissolution of Horizon Lines. 

5. If Horizon Lines is in default under either the Warehouse Lease Agreement or the 

Terminal Operation Contract. 

D. The City may terminate this Agreement on one hundred eighty (180) days’ notice to 

Horizon Lines if Horizon Lines makes (i) fewer than forty-five (45) container vessel calls 

47



  

City of Kodiak/Horizon Lines of Alaska, LLC 

Preferential Use Agreement 

Ord. No. 1329/City Contract 217720 

Page 7 of 15 

at the City in any period of twelve (12) consecutive months, or (ii) no Horizon Lines 

vessel calls at Pier III for a period of ninety (90) or more consecutive days. 

VI. USE OF PREMISES 

A. Horizon Lines shall not use the Premises or any facilities for any unlawful purposes. 

B. Horizon Lines shall use the Pier III Terminal area solely for freight transportation 

purposes. 

C. Horizon Lines is entitled to quiet enjoyment of the Premises provided that Horizon Lines 

does not breach the terms of this Agreement. 

VII. MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR OF PREMISES 

A. The City shall maintain and repair, at its own expense, the utilities (water, sewer or septic 

system, storm drainage, and electrical except items stated in Paragraph VII.B), common 

roadbeds and pier structures (less mooring capstans). In no event shall the City be 

obligated to repair or otherwise mitigate or respond to damages resulting from Horizon 

Lines’ use of the pier and pavement pursuant to this Agreement; except that the City shall 

be obligated to repair or otherwise attempt to mitigate or respond to damages resulting 

from an act or omission by the City or a third party. The City shall insure that other users 

of Pier III, if any, keep it clean and orderly.  

B. Horizon Lines shall, at its own expense, provide all routine preventive maintenance, 

repairs, and replacements to the structures, including: marine department building, 

maintenance facility building, container cranes, crane medium voltage 12.47KVA 

electrical system and associated equipment, crane rails, cable trench, heat trace system, 

overhead lights, electric pedestals, van back stack area, and electric capstan mooring 

units.  

C. Asphalt: Horizon Lines will maintain and repair all asphalt pavement in good condition. 

Horizon Lines will provide all snow removal and de-icing of the Pier III Terminal. 

Horizon Lines shall keep the Premises clean, orderly, and free of rubbish. If Horizon 

Lines fails to adequately remove snow, ice, or debris, the City may furnish the necessary 

equipment and manpower to provide this service in which event Horizon Lines shall 

promptly pay the City's billings for such services. 

D. Horizon Lines shall provide the City Harbormaster a semi-annual maintenance and repair 

report on any single incident of damage or repair over ten thousand dollars ($10,000). 

E. Within thirty (30) days after each anniversary of the date of this Agreement, Horizon 

Lines and the City agree to inspect the Premises and prepare a report describing the 

condition of the Premises and specifying any items in need of repair. The party 

responsible for those repairs shall start those repairs within thirty (30) days after the 

report is prepared and shall promptly complete them. 

F. If, at any time during the term of this Agreement, the Premises are damaged or destroyed 

by fire or other casualty, due to any cause other than an act or omission solely of Horizon 

Lines, the City may elect to either (i) at its expense, repair, rebuild, replace and restore 

the Premises to a condition comparable to that which existed immediately prior to the fire 

or other casualty, or (ii) terminate this Agreement. In the event the City elects to repair, 

48



  

City of Kodiak/Horizon Lines of Alaska, LLC 

Preferential Use Agreement 

Ord. No. 1329/City Contract 217720 

Page 8 of 15 

rebuild, replace or restore the Premises, payments under this Agreement shall be abated 

in proportion to the extent that the Premises are not usable by Horizon Lines during the 

time the unusable areas remain unrepaired or unrestored. 

G. The City shall maintain a depth of approximately minus 38 feet MLLW in the berthing 

area.  

H. Horizon Lines shall make no alterations, additions, or improvements to the Pier III 

Terminal without the prior written approval of the City. At the expiration of this 

Agreement, or any renewal thereof, any such improvements shall become the property of 

the City. 

I. Horizon Lines acknowledges having inspected or having been given a full opportunity to 

inspect the Premises and hereby accepts them in their present condition, and shall at the 

termination of this Agreement surrender said Premises in as good a condition and repair 

to the City, reasonable wear and tear excepted. 

J. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement: 

1. Commencing upon the earlier to occur of (i) one (1) year after the date on which 

the New Crane becomes operational, and (ii) the date when removal of the Old 

Crane has been completed, neither party shall have any obligation to maintain, 

repair or restore the old Pier III.  

2. On and after the date of Substantial Completion of the new Pier III, Horizon Lines 

may continue to use the old Pier III at its own risk, subject to load limits that the 

City may impose from time to time, and subject to J.3 of this paragraph. 

3. At any time after the earlier to occur of (i) one (1) year after the date on which the 

New Crane becomes operational, and (ii) the date when removal of the Old Crane 

has been completed, the City may determine in its sole discretion to:  

a. Discontinue permission to use the old Pier III, or  

b. Decommission, demolish and remove the old Pier III.   

VIII. ADDITIONAL TERMS REGARDING THE NEW CRANE. 

A. Covenant against Liens.  Horizon Lines may not permit any lien other than a lien 

securing the general corporate financing obligations of Horizon Lines, including without 

limitation a lien to secure financing or a mechanic's or materialman's lien, to be filed or 

recorded against the New Crane. The Operator shall indemnify and save the City 

harmless from all liability for damages occasioned by any such lien, together with all 

costs and expenses (including attorneys' fees) incurred by the City in negotiating, settling, 

defending, or otherwise protecting against such lien and shall, in the event of a judgment 

of foreclosure of the lien, cause the lien to be discharged and removed prior to any 

attempt at execution of such judgment.  If any lien other than a lien securing the general 

corporate financing obligations of Horizon Lines is filed or recorded against the New 

Crane, Horizon Lines shall cause the lien to be removed; provided that Horizon Lines 

may in good faith and at Horizon Lines’ own expense contest the validity of any 

mechanic’s or materialman’s lien without subjecting the New Crane to foreclosure, if 

Horizon Lines has furnished the bond required in AS 34.35.072 (or any comparable 

49



  

City of Kodiak/Horizon Lines of Alaska, LLC 

Preferential Use Agreement 

Ord. No. 1329/City Contract 217720 

Page 9 of 15 

statute hereafter enacted providing for a bond freeing the New Crane from the effect of 

such a lien claim).  

B. Option to Purchase. 

1. Upon occurrence of any of the following events, the City shall have the option to 

purchase the New Crane as provided below: (i) the City terminates this Contract 

upon a default by Horizon Lines as provided in Section V; or (ii) Horizon Lines 

ceases to operate at Pier III under the terms of this Agreement.  

2. The City shall exercise the option to purchase by giving Horizon Lines written 

notice not less than ninety 90 days before the purchase date.  The City shall, at its 

own expense, retain an independent appraiser, who shall determine the fair market 

value of the New Crane at its location on Pier III.  The City shall complete such 

appraisal and deliver a copy of the appraisal report to Horizon Lines with its 

notice exercising the option to purchase. 

3. The appraiser’s determination of the fair market value of the New Crane under (2) 

of this paragraph shall constitute a final binding determination of the fair market 

value and the option purchase price for the New Crane, unless Horizon Lines 

gives written notice to the City of its objection to the appraiser’s determination 

within thirty (30) days after receiving the appraiser’s report, and Horizon Lines 

shall then engage a second independent appraiser at Horizon Lines’ expense to 

make a second appraisal of the fair market value in accordance with (2) of this 

paragraph. 

4. If the second appraisal determines a fair market value that varies from that 

determined by the first appraisal by no more than twenty percent (20%), then the 

option purchase price shall be the average of the fair market values determined by 

the appraisals.  If the second appraisal determines a fair market value that varies 

from the first appraisal by more than twenty percent (20%), then, unless the City 

and Horizon Lines agree on an option purchase price themselves, the option 

purchase price shall be determined by arbitration by a single arbitrator under the 

rules of the American Arbitration Association. 

C. Right of First Refusal.  The City is hereby given a right of first refusal to purchase the 

New Crane on the following terms and conditions: 

1. Horizon Lines may accept an offer to purchase the New Crane only if it is made 

subject to the City’s right of first refusal herein.  Upon acceptance of an offer to 

purchase the New Crane from a third party (the “Purchase Offer”), Horizon Lines 

will present a copy of the offer and acceptance to the City by written notice at the 

address set forth in Section XIX.  The City will then have ninety (90) days to 

either agree to purchase the New Crane on the same terms and conditions set forth 

in the Purchase Offer or decline to exercise its right of first refusal.  The City shall 

give written notice of its decision to exercise or decline to exercise its right of first 

refusal to Horizon Lines at the address set forth in Section XIX no later than 

ninety (90) days after being presented with a copy of the Purchase Offer.  

50



  

City of Kodiak/Horizon Lines of Alaska, LLC 

Preferential Use Agreement 

Ord. No. 1329/City Contract 217720 

Page 10 of 15 

2. If the City does not exercise its right of first refusal, Horizon Lines may then sell 

the New Crane to the third party, or any assignee/nominee of said third party, on 

the same terms and conditions set forth in the Purchase Offer.  If the New Crane 

sells to the third party, or any assignee/nominee of said third party, on the same 

terms and conditions set forth in the Purchase Offer, then any interest of the City 

in and to the New Crane shall cease and be of no further force and effect. 

3. If the New Crane is not sold to the third party, or the third party’s 

assignee/nominee, on the terms and conditions in the Purchase Offer, then the 

City will continue to have the right of first refusal to purchase the New Crane 

under the procedures outlined above in this paragraph. 

IX. INDEMNITY 

A. Horizon Lines shall indemnify and hold harmless the City and its elected and appointed 

officials, employees, agents, and servants from any and all losses, expenses, damages, 

demands, and claims by any person in connection with or rising out of any injury 

(including death) to persons or in connection with damage to property or the natural 

environment, sustained in whole or in part as a result of Horizon Lines’ use and operation 

of the Old Crane or New Crane, its occupancy and maintenance of the Premises, and/or 

exercise of its rights under this Agreement or Horizon Lines' breach of this Agreement. 

Horizon Lines shall defend all suits and actions brought against the City and any of its 

elected or appointed officials, employees, agents or servants from any such injury or 

damage and shall pay all damages, costs, and expenses, including attorney's fees incurred 

in connection with the suits or actions. The only exception to this indemnity provision 

shall be for claims resulting from the negligence, gross negligence, or willful misconduct 

of the City or its employees, agents, or servants, and for claims resulting from an act or 

omission of a third party, with respect to which Horizon Lines' obligations under this 

paragraph shall be limited to that portion of any such claim not attributable to the City 

and not attributable to a third party. 

B. This indemnity provision specifically includes all environmental damage that may result 

from Horizon Lines’ operations under this Agreement and any penalties or fines which 

may be assessed in connection therewith. 

C. Claims arising in whole or in part out of any incident or event occurring during the term 

of this Agreement or any extension or renewal of it shall be covered by the provisions of 

this section IX even though they may not have been asserted or discovered until after the 

expiration of said term. 

X. UTILITIES 

A. During the term of this Agreement, except as provided in paragraph B of this section, 

Horizon Lines shall pay the providers directly for all utility bills and accounts for utility 

services used or consumed by Horizon Lines on or in connection with the Premises, 

including all operating costs for the Old Crane. 

B. The City shall provide water and septic tank pump-out service, or sewer service if 

available, to the Premises at no charge to Horizon Lines. 

51



  

City of Kodiak/Horizon Lines of Alaska, LLC 

Preferential Use Agreement 

Ord. No. 1329/City Contract 217720 

Page 11 of 15 

C. Horizon Lines shall be responsible for obtaining its own janitorial services for the 

facilities associated with the Pier III Terminal. 

XI. INSURANCE 

A. Horizon Lines shall procure and maintain at its sole expense, and shall keep in full force 

and effect throughout the term of this Agreement, the following policies of insurance: 

1. Commercial General Liability Insurance, $5,000,000 combined single limit per 

occurrence for bodily injury and property damage claims arising from all 

operations related to this Lease.  The general aggregate limit shall be $5,000,000. 

2. Commercial Automobile Liability Insurance, $5,000,000 combined single limit 

per accident for bodily injury and property damage. 

3. Worker's Compensation and Employers Liability.  Worker's Compensation shall 

be statutory as required by the State of Alaska.  Employers Liability shall be 

endorsed to the following minimum limits and contain USL&H coverage 

endorsement, if applicable:  (i) bodily injury by accident--$1,000,000 each 

accident; and (ii) bodily injury by disease--$1,000,000 each employee, $1,000,000 

policy limit. 

B. Other Insurance Provisions.  The policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the 

following provisions: 

1. Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability  

a. City, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers are to be covered as 

additional insureds. The coverage shall contain no special limitation on the 

scope of protection afforded to City, its officers, officials, employees and 

volunteers. 

b. Horizon Lines’ insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects 

City, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers.  Any insurance or 

self-insurance maintained by City, its officers, officials, employees and 

volunteers shall be excess of Horizon Lines’ insurance and shall not 

contribute to it. 

c. Horizon Lines’ insurer shall agree to waive all rights of subrogation 

against City, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers for losses 

arising from work performed by Horizon Lines for City. 

2. Worker's Compensation and Employer's Liability. Horizon Lines’ insurer shall 

agree to waive all rights of subrogation against City, its officers, officials, 

employees and volunteers for losses arising from work performed by Horizon 

Lines for City. 

3. All Insurance. Each insurance policy required by this Agreement shall be 

endorsed to state that coverage shall not be suspended, voided, canceled by either 

party, reduced in coverage or in limits except after thirty (30) days’ prior written 

notice has been given by the Insurer to City by certified mail, return receipt 

requested.  

52



  

City of Kodiak/Horizon Lines of Alaska, LLC 

Preferential Use Agreement 

Ord. No. 1329/City Contract 217720 

Page 12 of 15 

C. Acceptability of Insurers. Insurance is to be placed with insurers qualified to do business 

in Alaska having a Best's rating of no less than A-: VII. 

D. Verification of Coverage. Horizon Lines shall furnish City with approved certificates of 

insurance and with certified copies of all endorsements effecting coverage required by 

this Section.  The certificates and endorsements for each insurance policy are to be signed 

by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf.  The certificates are 

to be on forms which meet industry standard.  City reserves the right to require complete, 

certified copies of all required insurance policies at any time. 

XII. RIGHT OF INSPECTION 

A. The City shall have the right to inspect the Premises without prior notice to ensure 

compliance with the terms of this Agreement. 

B. The City shall have the right to audit Horizon Lines’ records and to require Horizon 

Lines to prepare summaries or reports from its records to determine compliance with the 

payment terms of this Agreement. 

XIII. TAXES 

A. In addition to the fees and charges provided in this Agreement, Horizon Lines shall pay 

when due all taxes and other charges which are levied at any time during the term of this 

Agreement upon the leasehold interest and any improvements on the Premises. If the City 

receives a notice of assessment from any taxing jurisdiction claiming that the City or 

Horizon Lines is liable for any tax or charge for which Horizon Lines has agreed to make 

payment under this paragraph, the City shall notify Horizon Lines in writing no later than 

thirty (30) days after receipt of the claim. If the City fails to provide Horizon Lines such 

notice, Horizon Lines shall have no obligation to pay the tax or charge. 

B. If Horizon Lines has a reasonable basis to contest, protest, or appeal (the “Appeal”) the 

imposition or amount of any tax or charge, Horizon Lines, at its own expense, may 

prosecute the Appeal, in which case the City shall cooperate fully with Horizon Lines 

including, but not limited to, providing documentation and other information as required 

for Horizon Lines to settle or sustain the Appeal. If Horizon Lines prosecutes the Appeal, 

and if, but only if, such proceedings suspend enforcement and collection of the tax or 

charge, and no part of the Premises or any interest therein is or will be in danger of being 

sold or forfeited, Horizon Lines shall have no obligation to pay the tax or charge until the 

taxing jurisdiction's decision that the City or Horizon Lines is liable for the tax or charge 

becomes final. If any of the Premises is subjected to a lien which is not discharged within 

thirty (30) days after Horizon Lines receives notice of such lien, Horizon Lines shall 

deposit with the City cash, a sufficient corporate surety bond or other security satisfactory 

to the City in an amount adequate to provide for the discharge of the lien plus any 

interest, costs, attorneys' fees or other charges that could accrue as a result of such 

contest. 

XIV. ASSIGNMENT  

The parties stipulate and agree that the services rendered under this Agreement are of 

such a nature that the rights and duties of Horizon Lines hereunder shall not be assignable 

without the prior written consent of the City, which consent shall not be unreasonably 

53



  

City of Kodiak/Horizon Lines of Alaska, LLC 

Preferential Use Agreement 

Ord. No. 1329/City Contract 217720 

Page 13 of 15 

withheld, except to an entity that is owned solely by or that is an affiliate of Horizon 

Lines, after thirty (30) days’ prior notice to the City. Horizon Lines shall include in such 

notice a statement of any legal requirement for confidentiality regarding the notice or the 

related transaction, with which the City shall comply.  Should the City consent to an 

assignment Horizon Lines shall nevertheless remain liable for the performance of all of 

its obligations under this Agreement and the acceptance by the City directly from an 

assignee of any payments or other performance due under this Agreement shall not be 

construed as a waiver of Horizon Lines’ continuing liability. A change of control of 

Horizon Lines other than from the parent entity of Horizon Lines to an affiliate shall 

constitute an assignment for purposes of this provision. 

XV. COMPLIANCE WITH FEDERAL, STATE, AND LOCAL LAWS 

At all times during the term of this Agreement, Horizon Lines shall conduct operations in 

accordance with all applicable federal, state, and local laws and ordinances. 

XVI. SEVERABILITY 

If any part, term or provision of this Agreement is declared null or unenforceable by a 

court or other tribunal of competent jurisdiction, the validity and enforceability of the rest 

of this Agreement shall not be affected. 

XVII. WAIVERS 

No waiver by Horizon Lines or the City of any covenant or condition of this Agreement 

shall be construed as a waiver of any other covenant or condition, nor shall the waiver of 

one breach be considered as a waiver of any other breach. 

XVIII. SURRENDER 

A. Horizon Lines agrees not to encumber the Premises at any time during the term of this 

Agreement. Horizon Lines agrees that the Premises shall not be subject to any liens, 

charges or encumbrances and agrees that at the expiration of the term of this Agreement 

it will deliver to the City or its designee, the Premises in good condition (ordinary wear 

and tear excepted) and without liens, charges, or encumbrances. 

B. Unless required for the performance by Horizon Lines of its obligations hereunder, 

Horizon Lines shall have the right at any time during the Term to remove from the 

Premises all its equipment, removable fixtures and other personal property, and all 

property of third persons for which Horizon Lines is responsible, and on or before the 

expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement it shall remove all of the same from 

the Premises, repairing all damage caused by any removal; provided, however, that, 

except with respect to the New Crane, if Horizon Lines shall fail to remove all such 

property within forty-five (45) days after the expiration or earlier termination of this 

Agreement, the City may remove such property to a public warehouse for deposit or may 

retain the same in its own possession and in either event may sell the same at public 

auction; provided, further, that the City shall have given Horizon Lines ten (10) days’’ 

notice of the City’s intent to sell such property at public auction, the proceeds of which 

shall be applied:  first to the expenses of removal, including repair required thereby, and 

of storage and sale; second, to any sums owed by Horizon Lines to the City, with any 

balance remaining to be paid to Horizon Lines; if the expenses of such removal, repair, 

54



  

City of Kodiak/Horizon Lines of Alaska, LLC 

Preferential Use Agreement 

Ord. No. 1329/City Contract 217720 

Page 14 of 15 

storage, and sale shall exceed the proceeds of sale, Horizon Lines shall pay such excess 

to the City upon demand.  Without limiting any other term or provisions of this 

Agreement, Horizon Lines shall indemnify and hold harmless the City, its officers, 

agents, employees, and contractors from all claims of third persons arising out of the 

City’s removal and disposition of property pursuant to this Section, including claims for 

conversion, claims for loss of or damage to property, claims for injury to persons 

(including death), and claims for any other damages, consequential or otherwise, 

excluding only claims based on the City’s sole negligence. 

XIX. MODIFICATIONS AND NOTICES 

A. No modification of this Agreement shall be effective unless agreed to by Horizon Lines 

and the City in writing. No modification of one provision of this Agreement shall be 

considered a waiver, breach or cancellation of any other provision. 

B. All notices required to be given under this Agreement shall be in writing, and shall be 

effective on the date of receipt and shall be mailed to the parties at the following 

addresses:  

Horizon Lines of Alaska, LLC 

1717 Tidewater Road 

Anchorage, Alaska 99501 

Attn: _______________ 

City Manager 

City of Kodiak 

710 Mill Bay Road 

Kodiak, Alaska 99615 

Any notice or document delivered by facsimile transmission to a facsimile machine at 

which the recipient routinely receives such transmissions shall be effective upon the date 

of receipt of the complete and fully legible document (so long as the original is also 

mailed in accordance with this paragraph) unless the transmission occurred outside of the 

usual business hours of the recipient, in which event the document shall be deemed to 

have been received on the next business day. 

XX. ANTI-DISCRIMINATION 

During the performance of this Agreement, Horizon Lines agrees: 

A. In connection with its performance under this Agreement including construction, 

maintenance, and operation of or on the Premises, Horizon Lines will not discriminate 

against any employee or applicant for employment because of age, race, color, ancestry, 

religion, sex, or national origin. 

B. Horizon Lines and its employees shall not discriminate, by segregation or otherwise, 

against any person on the basis of race, color, ancestry, religion, sex, or nationality by 

curtailing or refusing to furnish accommodations, facilities, services, or use privileges 

offered to the public generally. 

C. Horizon Lines shall include and require compliance with the above nondiscrimination 

provisions in any subletting or subcontract made with respect to construction or 

maintenance operations under this Agreement. 

 

 

55



  

City of Kodiak/Horizon Lines of Alaska, LLC 

Preferential Use Agreement 

Ord. No. 1329/City Contract 217720 

Page 15 of 15 

XXI. ALASKA LAW 

The parties agree that this Agreement was entered into in the State of Alaska, that Alaska 

law will govern its interpretation and application, and that venue of any suit or other 

action arising out of this Agreement shall be in Alaska. 

XXII. BINDING ON SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

All provisions of this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding on the 

parties, their successors, and permitted assigns. 

XXIII. COMPLETE AGREEMENT 

This Agreement, including Exhibit A hereto, and the Terminal Operation Contract and 

Warehouse Lease Agreement, both dated __________, 2014, between Horizon Lines and 

the City, constitute the final agreement between the parties. They are the complete and 

exclusive expression of the parties’ agreement on the matters contained in this 

Agreement. All prior and contemporaneous oral and written negotiations and agreements 

between the parties on the matters contained in this Agreement are expressly merged into 

and superseded by the aforementioned agreements. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have signed this Agreement on the date or dates indicated 

beneath the signature of their respective officers or agents.  

City of Kodiak  Horizon Lines of Alaska, LLC 

 

 

 

  

_________________  Date 

Acting City Manager 

 Kenneth Gill   Date 

Director of Operations 

   

ATTEST:  ATTEST: 

 

 

 

  

Debra L. Marlar  Date 

City Clerk 

 Richard Kniaziowski  Date 

Terminal Manager 

 

56



CITY OF KODIAK 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 1326 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KODIAK AUTHORIZ
ING THE CITY TO ENTER INTO A PREFERENTIAL USE AGREEMENT, A TERMI
NAL OPERATION CONTRACT, AND A WAREHOUSE LEASE AGREEMENT WITH 
HORIZON LINES OF ALASKA, LLC 

WHEREAS, City Charter Article V-17 requires that any contract which by its terms will 
not be fully executed within five years and which cannot be terminated by the City upon not 
more than one month's notice without penalty, and the sale or lease of any City property, real or 
personal, or the sale or other disposal of any interest therein, the value of which property, lease, 
or interest is more than $30,000, shall be made only by ordinance; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Kodiak and Horizon Lines of Alaska, LLC have renegotiated a 
ten-year Preferential Use Agreement to provide Horizon Lines of Alaska, LLC preferential 
berthing rights at the Port of Kodiak Pier III Terminal, a ten-year Terminal Operation Contract 
for Horizon Lines of Alaska, LLC to provide services for the Port of Kodiak at Piers II and III, 
and a five-year Warehouse Lease Agreement of the City property located at 727 Shelikof Street, 
Kodiak, Alaska, situated within U.S. Survey 2537B, commonly known as the Pier II Warehouse; 
and 

WHEREAS, the terms of the Preferential Use Agreement, the Terminal Operation 
Contract and the Warehouse Lease Agreement are intended to complement one another; and 

WHEREAS, City Code Section 18.20.230 requires that the subleasing of any property 
leased from the City must be approved by the Council and subject to the terms and conditions of 
the original lease; and 

WHEREAS, Horizon Lines of Alaska, LLC will continue to sublease space in the Pier II 
Warehouse to American President Lines, Ltd. (APL) and Amak Towing Company, Inc. (Amak 
Towing); and 

WHEREAS, there have been presented to this meeting the forms of the Preferential Use 
Agreement, the Terminal Operation Contract and the Warehouse Lease Agreement, and it 
appears that these documents, which now are before this meeting, are in appropriate form and are 
appropriate instruments for the purposes intended. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Kodiak, Alaska: 

Section 1: The Council of the City of Kodiak hereby authorizes the Preferential Use Agree
ment with Horizon Lines of Alaska, LLC, which is attached hereto and incorpo
rated by reference according to the terms, covenants, conditions, and agreements 
contained in the Agreement and further stated in the Terminal Operation Contract 
and the Warehouse Lease Agreement. 

Ordinance No. 1326 
Page 1 of2 

57

cperkins
Text Box
Attachment C



Section 2: 

Section 3: 

Section 4: 

Section 5: 

ATTEST: 

The Council of the City of Kodiak hereby authorizes the Terminal Operation 
Contract with Horizon Lines, LLC, which is attached hereto and incorporated by 
reference according to the terms, covenants, conditions, and agreements contained 
in the Contract and further stated in the Warehouse Lease Agreement and the 
Preferential Use Agreement. 

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in Kodiak City Code Chapter 18.20, the 
Council of the City of Kodiak hereby authorizes the Warehouse Lease Agreement 
with Horizon Lines of Alaska, LLC of the property located at 727 Shelikof Street, 
Kodiak, Alaska, situated within U.S. Survey 2537B, more commonly known as 
the Pier II Warehouse, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference ac
cording to the terms, covenants, conditions, and agreements contained in the 
Agreement and further stated in the Preferential Use Agreement and the Terminal 
Operation Contract. 

The Council of the City of Kodiak hereby authorizes Horizon Lines of Alaska, 
LLC to sublease space in the Pier II Warehouse to APL and Amak Towing. 

The agreements authorized by this ordinance are subject to the requirements of 
City Charter Section V-17. Therefore, if one or more referendum petitions with 
signatures are properly filed within one month after the passage and publication of 
this ordinance, this ordinance shall not go into effect until the petition or petitions 
are finally found to be illegal and/or insufficient, or, if any such petition is found 
legal and sufficient, until the ordinance is approved at election by a majority of 
the qualified voters voting on the question. If no referendum petition with signa
tures is filed, this ordinance shall go into effect one month after its passage and 
publication. 

CITY OF KODIAK 

First Reading: September 25, 2014 
Second Reading: October 23, 2014 
Effective Date: November 29, 2014 

Ordinance No. 1326 
Page 2 of2 

58



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(This page left intentionally blank.) 

59



60



 

JANUARY 8, 2015 

Agenda Item V. b. Memo Page 2 of 3 

 

requested additional changes to the lease. The requested changes were sent to the City Attorney for 

further review, and he wrote Ordinance No. 1330 to accomplish the additional requested changes to the 

lease. 

 

The new lease (Attachment B) is between the City and CCATT LLC’s successor, NCWPCS MPL 31 – 

Year Sites Tower Holdings LLC. It is for a five-year term from January 1, 2015, through December 31, 

2019, with a 12-month cancellation clause. The lease allows two five-year term extension if the Lessee 

provides the required written notice of intent and is not in default with lease terms. The first year’s 

annual payment is $13,577 with a 2.5 percent annual rate increase each year thereafter. 

 

The lease requires Council approval by ordinance (Attachment A) due to the value and terms of the 

lease per the City’s Charter, Article V-17. Therefore, staff requests Council approve the lease by passing 

Ordinance No. 1330 in the first reading and advance to second reading at the next regular or special 

Council meeting. 

 

ALTERNATIVES:  

1) Pass Ordinance No. 1330 in the first reading and advance to second reading and public hearing at 

the next regular or special Council meeting, which is staff’s recommendation, because it will 

provide income to the City and allow the site to continue to be used as a communications site for 

the community.  

2) Do not pass Ordinance No.1330, which is not recommended, because it would result in a loss of 

revenue and would affect communications in Kodiak. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: There is a financial benefit each year of the lease through receipt of 

lease payments into the General Fund starting at $13,577 per year with a 2.5 percent increase in rent 

payments each subsequent year of the lease. The successor to CCATT, LLC, NCWPCS MPL 31 – Year 

Sites Tower Holdings, LLC, will be responsible for site management, maintenance, insurance, and rental 

payments. 

 

LEGAL: The City Attorney worked with staff to develop the amended lease and drafted the attached 

ordinance to meet the requirements of the City Charter, Article V-17. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends Council pass Ordinance No. 1330 in the first 

reading and advance to second reading at the next regular or special Council meeting. 

 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: I support the renewal of the amended lease for the Pillar Mountain 

Communications Site No. 11 with CCATT, LLC’s successor, NCWPCS MPL 31 – Year Sites Tower 

Holdings, LLC. This will provide some income for the General Fund, and the site will continue to 

provide a communications service to the community of Kodiak. I recommend Council pass Ordinance 

61



 

JANUARY 8, 2015 

Agenda Item V. b. Memo Page 3 of 3 

 

No. 1330 in the first reading and advance to second reading and public hearing at the next regular or 

special Council meeting. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:  

Attachment A: Ordinance No. 1330 

Attachment B: Revised Lease for Pillar Mountain Communications Site No.11 

Attachment C: Email Requesting Additional Changes to Lease 

Attachment D: Ordinance No. 1323 

Attachment E: Letter from Crown Castle requesting renewal, dated July 2, 2014 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PROPOSED MOTION: 

Move to pass Ordinance No. 1330 in the first reading and advance to second reading and public 

hearing at the next regular or special Council meeting.  

62



Ordinance No. 1330 

Page 1 of 2 

 

CITY OF KODIAK 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 1330 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KODIAK AMENDING 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 1323 AUTHORIZING A LEASE OF A COMMUNICATION 

SITE IN U.S. SURVEY 3945 ON PILLAR MOUNTAIN TO NCWPCS MPL 31 – YEAR 

SITES TOWER HOLDINGS, LLC 

 

 WHEREAS, the City owns property on Pillar Mountain known as Pillar Mountain 

Communication Site No. 11 that it has leased to New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC (“New 

Cingular”), for a communications site; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City approved the assignment of the lease by New Cingular to CCATT, 

LLC (“CCATT”) by Resolution No. 2014–05 on January 16, 2014; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the lease to CCATT expired on December 31, 2014; and 

 

WHEREAS, NCWPCS MPL 31 – Year Sites Tower Holdings, LLC, a Delaware limited 

liability company (“NCWPCS”), is the successor to CCATT, and the City Council by Ordinance 

Number 1323, adopted September 11, 2014, authorized a new Lease Agreement – Pillar 

Mountain Communications Site No. 11 ("Lease") between the City and NCWPCS for Pillar 

Mountain Communication Site No. 11 for a five-year term commencing January 1, 2015; and  

 

 WHEREAS, after the adoption of Ordinance Number 1323, NCWPCS proposed 

additional changes to the terms of the Lease; and 

 

WHEREAS, the purpose of this ordinance is to amend Ordinance Number 1323 to 

approve the amended Lease that now is before this meeting.  

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Kodiak, Alaska, 

as follows: 

 

Section 1: Ordinance Number 1323 is amended by deleting all references therein to the 

Lease originally authorized by that ordinance, and substituting for each such 

reference a reference to the amended Lease that now is before this meeting. 

 

Section 2: The Lease authorized by Ordinance Number 1323 as amended by this ordinance 

is subject to the requirements of City Charter Section V-17. Therefore, if one or 

more referendum petitions with signatures are properly filed within one month 

after the passage and publication of this ordinance, this ordinance shall not go into 

effect until the petition or petitions are finally found to be illegal and/or 

insufficient, or, if any such petition is found legal and sufficient, until the 

ordinance is approved at an election by a majority of the qualified voters voting 

on the question. If no referendum petition with signatures is filed, this ordinance 

shall go into effect one month after its passage and publication. 

 

63

cperkins
Text Box
Attachment A



Ordinance No. 1330 

Page 2 of 2 

 

CITY OF KODIAK 

 

 

 

   MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

  CITY CLERK 

 

 

First Reading:   

Second Reading:   

Effective Date:  

64



 

Pillar Mt. Communication Site. No. 11 

December 31, 2019 

City Contract No. 216603 

NCWPCS MPL 31 – Year Sites Tower Holdings LLC 

Lessee Site Name: Pillar Mountain 

Lessee Business Unit #: 857449  Page 1 of 7 

LEASE AGREEMENT 

 

PILLAR MOUNTAIN COMMUNICATION SITE NO. 11 

NCWPCS MPL 31 – YEAR SITES  

TOWER HOLDINGS, LLC 

 

LEASE made as of the 1st day of January 2015, by and between the CITY OF KODIAK, 

an Alaska municipal corporation ("Lessor"), and NCWPCS MPL 31 – YEAR SITES TOWER 

HOLDINGS LLC, a Delaware limited liability company ("Lessee”): 

 

1. Leased Premises. Upon the terms and conditions set forth herein and subject to 

the prompt payment and performance by Lessee of each and every sum and other obligation 

hereinafter referred to, Lessor does hereby lease, let, and demise to Lessee, and Lessee does 

hereby lease from Lessor the following described premises within U.S. Survey 3945 in the 

Kodiak Recording District, Third Judicial District, State of Alaska, more particularly described 

as follows: 

 

Commencing at a brass cap monument set in a gun turret, “U.S. Army Corp of Engineers 

Alkod Rm 2;"  

Thence N 51 20' 30" E 2433.41' to the true point of beginning; 

Thence S 88 17' 08" E, 80.00 feet; 

Thence S 01 42' 52" W, 40.00 feet; 

Thence N 88 17' 08" W, 80.00 feet; 

Thence N 01 42' 52" E, 40.00 feet to the true point of beginning; 

Containing 3200.0 square feet more or less 

 

These leased premises are hereinafter referred to as the "Site." 

 

2. Term.  
A. This Lease shall continue in effect for a period of (5) five years from January 1, 2015, 

through December 31, 2019 (“Term”), provided, however, that either party shall have the right to 

cancel this Lease upon [six (6) months’] [one (1) year’s] written notice in advance of the date of 

such cancellation, such notice to be by certified mail sent to the usual mailing address of the 

party to be notified.  

B. Lessee has the option to extend the Term for one (1) additional five (5) year period 

(“Extended Term”), provided that:  

(1) Lessee gives Lessor written notice of its exercise of the option not more than 

one (1) year and not less than one hundred twenty (120) days before the last day of the 

initial Term.  

(2) At the time Lessee exercises the option, and at all times thereafter until the 

Extended Term commences, Lessee is not materially in default of any term or condition 

of this Lease.  

Lessee’s failure to exercise the option to extend the Term in strict compliance with all the 

requirements in this section renders that option null and void. 

B.  Lessee shall have the right to terminate this Lease upon twelve (12) months’ written notice:  

65

cperkins
Text Box
Attachment B



 

Pillar Mt. Communication Site. No. 11 

December 31, 2019 

City Contract No. 216603 

NCWPCS MPL 31 – Year Sites Tower Holdings LLC 

Lessee Site Name: Pillar Mountain 

Lessee Business Unit #: 857449  Page 2 of 7 

  (1) if the approval of any agency, board, court, or other governmental authority 

necessary for the construction, operation or modification of the technology or site configuration 

of Lessee’s facility on the Site is denied by the public agency authorized to issue such approval, 

or, if Lessee determines, in its reasonable discretion, the cost of obtaining such approval is 

commercially unfeasible; or,  

  (2) a required permit or approval is issued, but subsequently revoked, canceled or 

not renewed, through no act, omission or fault of Lessee; or,  

  (3) if Lessee determines, in its sole discretion, that the Site is not appropriate for 

its operations due to technological, engineering or economic reasons.   

 C.  Lessor shall have the right to terminate this Lease upon twelve (12) months’ written 

notice to Lessee in the event Lessor determines in good faith that the Site is needed by Lessor for 

public purposes.  

 

D. Lessee has the option to extend the Term for two (2) additional five (5) year periods 

(each an “Extended Term”), provided that:  

 

(1) Lessee gives Lessor written notice of its exercise of the option not more than 

one (1) year and not less than one hundred twenty (120) days before the last day of the 

initial Term; and   

(2) At the time Lessee exercises the option, and at all times thereafter until the 

Extended Term commences, Lessee is not materially in default of any term or condition 

of this Lease.  

 

Lessee’s failure to exercise the option to extend the Term in strict compliance with all the 

requirements in this section renders that option null and void.  

 

3. Rental. A. Lessee agrees to pay as and for rent in equal monthly installments 

which fall due on the first of each calendar month the annual sum of Thirteen Thousand Five 

Hundred Seventy Seven and 00/100 Dollars ($13,577) for the first year of the Lease Term and 

according to the following schedule for the remaining four years of the Term. 

 

Year Rental 

2 102.5% of Year 1 

3 105.0% of Year 1 

4 107.5% of Year 1 

5 110.0% of Year 1 

 

B. If Lessee exercises its option in Section 2(BD) to extend the Term of this Lease, the 

annual rent in the first year of the Extended Term shall be 102.5% of the annual rent in the fifth 

year of the initial Term, and the annual rent in subsequent years of the Extended Term shall be 

determined by the formula that is provided for determining the annual rent in the initial Term. 

 

C. If a monthly installment is not paid by the fifth of the month in which it becomes due, 

a penalty of Thirty and 00/100 Dollars ($30) will be added to the rental amount; and, in addition, 

66



 

Pillar Mt. Communication Site. No. 11 

December 31, 2019 

City Contract No. 216603 

NCWPCS MPL 31 – Year Sites Tower Holdings LLC 

Lessee Site Name: Pillar Mountain 

Lessee Business Unit #: 857449  Page 3 of 7 

simple interest shall accrue and be added to the rental amount at the rate of twelve percent (12%) 

per annum from the due date until paid. 

 

4. Conditions of Lease. The Site shall be used solely as a communications site for a 

cellular telephone systemwireless communication facility.  The Site will house a 100' self-

supporting radio tower, a 10' x 20' communications equipment shelter, and propane powered 

backup generator, and related utilities, cables and ancillary equipment.  

 

5. Improvements. Lessor shall have the right to make additions, alterations, or 

improvements to the Site which that will not impede Lessee's access to or use of the Site. Lessee 

shall have the right to erect or construct a suitable building and/or associated structures as 

provided in Section 4. Any improvements constructed by Lessee shall be consistent with the 

limited use of the Site authorized by this Lease and shall be constructed at Lessee's expense. 

Upon termination of this Lease, such improvements shall become the property of Lessor or, at 

Lessee's option, shall be removed by Lessee at its sole expense. Lessee shall permit Lessor, at 

Lessor’s expense, to connect the equipment shelter for Lessor’s public safety communications 

system to the backup power supply in the communicationsan equipment shelter that designated 

by the Lessee that Lessee has constructed on the Site. Notwithstanding anything in Section 6 to 

the contrary, Lessor shall be solely responsible for maintaining the connection, and Lessee shall 

provide Lessor with reasonable access to Lessee’s communications the equipment shelter for that 

purpose. 

 

6. Maintenance. Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, Lessee shall, at 

all times and at its sole expense, keep and maintain the Site and its improvements in good repair, 

and in neat, orderly, and slightly condition. Lessee shall not cause or permit any litter, debris, or 

refuse to be accumulated or stored upon the Site and shall promptly remove all such materials 

without cost to Lessor. 

 

7. Indemnity. Lessee shall defend, indemnify, and hold Lessor, its officers, agents, 

and employees harmless against any and all actions, suits, proceedings, claims, loss, liens, costs, 

expense, and liability of every kind and nature whatsoever arising from injury to or death of 

persons or loss of or damage to property, including property owned by the Lessor, caused by or 

incurred as a result of Lessee's use and occupancy of the Site under this Lease, including, but not 

limited to, attorney's fees reasonably incurred for defense thereof. This provision shall not apply 

to claims, actions, damages, losses, or proceedings caused solely by the negligence of officers, 

agents, or employees of Lessor. 

 

8. Insurance. 
 A. Lessee shall procure and maintain at its sole expense, and shall keep in full force and 

effect throughout the Term of this Lease, the following policies of insurance: 

 

(1) Commercial General Liability Insurance, $1,000,000 combined single limit 

per occurrence for bodily injury and property damage claims arising from all operations 

related to this Lease.  The general aggregate limit shall be $2,000,000. 

 

67



 

Pillar Mt. Communication Site. No. 11 

December 31, 2019 

City Contract No. 216603 

NCWPCS MPL 31 – Year Sites Tower Holdings LLC 

Lessee Site Name: Pillar Mountain 

Lessee Business Unit #: 857449  Page 4 of 7 

(2) Commercial Automobile Liability Insurance, $1,000,000 combined single 

limit per accident for bodily injury and property damage. 

(3) Worker's Compensation and Employers Liability.  Worker's Compensation 

shall be statutory as required by the State of Alaska.  Employer’s Liability shall be 

endorsed to the following minimum limits and contain USL&H coverage endorsement, if 

applicable:  bodily injury by accident--$1,000,000 each accident; and bodily injury by 

disease--$1,000,000 each employee, $1,000,000 policy limit. 

 

B. Other Insurance Provisions.  The policies shall contain, or be endorsed to contain, the 

following provisions: 

(1) Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability  

(i) Lessor, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers are to be 

covered as additional insureds. The coverage shall contain no special limitation on 

the scope of protection afforded to Lessor, its officers, officials, employees and 

volunteers. 

(ii) Lessee's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects 

Lessor, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers.  Any insurance or self-

insurance maintained by Lessor, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers 

shall be excess of Lessee’s insurance and shall not contribute to it. 

(iii) Lessee's insurer shall agree to waive all rights of subrogation against 

Lessor, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers for losses arising from 

work performed by Lessee or any sublessee for Lessor. 

(2) Worker's Compensation and Employer's Liability. Lessee's insurer shall agree 

to waive all rights of subrogation against Lessor, its officers, officials, employees and 

volunteers for losses arising from work performed by Lessee or any sublessee for Lessor. 

(3) All Insurance. Each insurance policy required by this Lease shall be endorsed 

to state that coverage shall not be suspended, voided, canceled by either party, reduced in 

coverage or in limits except after 30 days’ prior written notice for nonpayment of 

premium or fraud on the part of Lessee, or 60 days prior written notice for any other 

reason, has been given to by the insurer to by Lessor by certified mail, return receipt 

requested. This requirement shall not apply to cancellation of insurance due to non-

payment of premium, in which event Lessee shall provide such notice to Lessor in 

accordance with the notice requirements of Section 15 of this Lease. 

C. Acceptability of Insurers. Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a Best's rating of 

no less than A-: VII. 

D. Verification of Coverage. Lessee shall furnish Lessor with approved certificates of 

insurance and with certified copies of all endorsements effecting coverage required by this 

section.  The certificates and endorsements for each insurance policy are to be signed by a person 

authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf.  The certificates are to be on forms 

which meet industry standard.  Lessor reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of 

all required insurance policies, at any time. 

 

9. Environmental.  
A. For purposes of this section: 

(1) Environmental Requirement shall mean any law, regulation, or legal 

68



 

Pillar Mt. Communication Site. No. 11 

December 31, 2019 

City Contract No. 216603 

NCWPCS MPL 31 – Year Sites Tower Holdings LLC 

Lessee Site Name: Pillar Mountain 

Lessee Business Unit #: 857449  Page 5 of 7 

requirement relating to health, safety, or the environment, now in effect or hereinafter 

enacted, including but not limited to the Comprehensive Environmental Response 

Compensation and Liability Act (CERCLA), the Toxic Substances Control Act (TSCA), 

the Federal Insecticide Fungicide and Rodenticide Act (FIFRA), the Resource 

Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA), the Clean Air Act (CAA) and the Clean Water 

Act (CWA), the Occupational Safety and Health Act (OSHA) and all similar state and 

local laws, rules, regulations, and guidance, now in existence or hereinafter enacted, as 

each such law, rule, or regulation may be amended from time to time. 

(2) Environmental Hazard shall mean Hazardous Materials (as defined 

hereinafter), or the storage, handling, production, disposal, treatment, or release thereof. 

(3) Hazardous Material shall mean 

(i) any hazardous waste, any extremely hazardous waste, or any restricted 

hazardous waste, or words of similar import, as defined in the Resource 

Conservation and Recovery Act (42 USC §6901 et seq.) 

(ii) any hazardous substances as defined in the Comprehensive 

Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act (42 USC §9601 et 

seq.) 

(iii) any toxic substances as defined in the Toxic Substances Control Act 

(15 USC §2601 et seq.) 

(iv) any pollutant as defined in the Clean Water Act (33 USC §1251 et 

seq.) 

(v) gasoline, petroleum, or other hydrocarbon products or by-products 

(vi) asbestos 

(vii) any other materials, substances, or wastes subject to environmental 

regulation under any applicable federal, state, or local law, regulation, or 

ordinance now or hereafter in effect 

(4) Environmental Liabilities shall mean any liability, penalties, fines, forfeitures, 

demands, damages, losses, claims, causes of action, suits, judgments, and costs and 

expenses incidental thereto (including cost of defense, settlement, reasonable attorneys' 

fees, reasonable consultant fees, and reasonable expert fees), arising from or based on 

environmental contamination or the threat of environmental contamination, or 

noncompliance, or violation of, any Environmental Requirement and shall include, but 

not be limited to, liability arising from 

(i) any governmental action, order, directive, administrative proceeding, or 

ruling 

(ii) personal or bodily injuries (including death) or damages to any property 

(including loss of use) or natural resources 

(iii) clean-up, remediation, investigation, monitoring, or other response 

action 

(5) Environmental Release shall mean any release, spill, leak, discharge, injection, 

disposal, or emission of any Hazardous materials into the environment. 

 

B. At all times during the term of the Lease, Lessee shall conduct its activities at the Site, 

and shall ensure that any invitee of Lessee conducts its activities at the Site in strict compliance 

with all applicable Environmental Requirements. 

69



 

Pillar Mt. Communication Site. No. 11 

December 31, 2019 

City Contract No. 216603 

NCWPCS MPL 31 – Year Sites Tower Holdings LLC 

Lessee Site Name: Pillar Mountain 

Lessee Business Unit #: 857449  Page 6 of 7 

 

C. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Lease, Lessee agrees to indemnify and 

hold harmless Lessor, Lessor's successors and assigns, and Lessor's present and future officers, 

directors, employees, and agents, (collectively "Lessor Indemnitees") from and against any and 

all Environmental Liabilities which Lessor or any or all of the Lessor Indemnitees may hereafter 

suffer, incur, be responsible for, or disburse as a result of any Environmental Hazard at the Site 

to the extent caused by or attributable to Lessee or Lessee's activities, or by any invitee of Lessee 

or by the activities of any invitee of Lessee. 

 

D. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Lease, Lessor agrees to indemnify and 

hold harmless Lessee, Lessee's successors and assigns, and Lessee's present and future officers, 

directors, employees and agents (collectively "Lessee Indemnitees") from and against any and all 

Environmental Liabilities which Lessee or any of the Lessee Indemnitees may hereafter suffer, 

incur, be responsible for, or disburse as a result of any Environmental Hazard at the Site to the 

extent caused by or attributable to Lessor or Lessor's activities, or by any invitee of Lessor or by 

the activities of any invitee of Lessor. 

 

E. The provisions of this section shall survive termination of this Lease. 

 

10. Utility Charges and Taxes. All utility charges shall be borne and paid for by 

Lessee, together with all personal or real property taxes or assessments that may be levied 

against the Lessee by reasons of its occupancy of the Site or its rights hereunder. 

 

11. Operation of Equipment. In installing, operating, or maintaining any equipment 

on the Site and in its general management of the Site, Lessee will act in accordance with 

applicable laws and regulations and so as not to cause interference with any other radio or 

television transmitting or receiving equipment whether located on the Site or not. Lessee will at 

all times protect from interference all frequencies assigned to Lessor whether or not such 

frequencies are in use.  Before altering, replacing or adding any transmission equipment at the 

Site, Lessee shall, at Lessee’s sole expense, arrange for an inter-modulation analysis so as to 

verify that no unacceptable signal interference will result from the alteration, replacement or 

addition.  Lessee shall provide Lessor with a copy of the inter-modulation analysis.  Lessee will 

not do, attempt, or permit any acts in connection with this Lease, which could be construed as a 

violation of law. 

 

12. Condition of Site. Lessee takes the Site in its present condition and Lessor shall 

have no responsibility for its condition, or for any damage suffered by Lessee or any other 

person due to such conditions. 

 

13. Assignment and Subleasing.  
A. Except as provided in this section, Lessee may not sublease the Site, either in whole or 

in any portion, without first obtaining the written approval of the City Council, which consent 

shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed. Lessee may not assign, mortgage, 

pledge, or otherwise encumber all or any portion of this Lease or the Site without first obtaining 

the written approval of the City Council, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, 

70



 

Pillar Mt. Communication Site. No. 11 

December 31, 2019 

City Contract No. 216603 

NCWPCS MPL 31 – Year Sites Tower Holdings LLC 

Lessee Site Name: Pillar Mountain 

Lessee Business Unit #: 857449  Page 7 of 7 

conditioned or delayed. Any assignment, pledge, or encumbrance approved by the Council shall 

be subject to all terms and provisions of this Lease. Any assignment, pledge, or encumbrance 

executed without the proper approval of the Council shall be void and of no force and effect. 

  

B. Notwithstanding the provisions of subsection A of this section, Lessor authorizes 

Lessee to sublease to Port Graham Development Corporation aThe Alaska Wireless Network, 

LLC aka ACS Wireless, Inc. under the following conditions: 

(1) Approval of the subleases does not release Lessee from any of its obligations 

under this Lease. 

(2) The sublessees agree to comply with all terms of this Lease regarding the use 

of the Site, insurance, and environmental requirements. 

(3) The insurance provided by Lessee must cover the activities of the sublessees. 

(4) Lessee shall remit to Lessor 30% of any revenues collected monthly. 

 

C. Notwithstanding the provisions of subsection A of this sectionSection 13, Lessee will 

have the right to assign, sell, or transfer its interest under this Lease without the approval or 

consent of Lessor, to Lessee’s parent or member company or any affiliate or subsidiary of, or 

partner in, Lessee or its parent or member company or to any entity which acquires all or 

substantially all of Lessee’s assets in the market defined by the Federal Communications 

Commission in which the Site is located by reason of a merger, acquisition, or other business 

reorganization. Upon notification to Lessor of such assignment, transfer, or sale, Lessee will be 

relieved of all future performance, liabilities, and obligations under this Lease. 

 

14. Default and Re-Entry. If Lessee fails to cure any default of the conditions of this 

Lease within thirty (30) days after written notice thereof by Lessor, or in the event insolvency 

proceedings should be instituted by or against Lessee, then Lessor may terminate the Lease as of 

such date and re-enter the Site and remove all property therefrom and Lessee shall remain liable 

for the payment of rental to the extent provided by law. If Lessor fails to cure any default of the 

conditions of this Lease within thirty (30) days after written notice thereof by Lessee, then 

Lessee may terminate the Lease as of such date and remove all property therefrom, and Lessor 

shall remain liable to Lessee to extent provided by this Lease and applicable law. 

 

15. Notices. All notices, requests, demands and communications hereunder will be 

given by first class certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, or by a nationally 

recognized overnight courier, postage prepaid, to be effective when properly sent and received, 

refused or returned undelivered.  Notices will be addressed to the parties as follows:   

 

If to LESSOR: If to LESSEE: 

71



 

Pillar Mt. Communication Site. No. 11 

December 31, 2019 

City Contract No. 216603 

NCWPCS MPL 31 – Year Sites Tower Holdings LLC 

Lessee Site Name: Pillar Mountain 

Lessee Business Unit #: 857449  Page 8 of 7 

City of Kodiak  

Attn: City Clerk 

710 Mill Bay Road 

Kodiak, Alaska 99615 

NCWPCS MPL 31 – YEAR SITES 

TOWER HOLDINGS LLC 

c/o Crown Castle USA Inc. 

E. Blake Hawk, General Counsel 

Attn: Legal Department 

2000 Corporate Drive  

Canonsburg, PA 15317 

 

 

16.  Consideration.  Lessee will pay to Lessor a one-time amount of Ten Thousand 

and 00/100 Dollars ($10,000.00) for the full execution of this Lease (the “Conditional Signing 

Bonus”).  Lessee will pay to Lessor the Conditional Signing Bonus within sixty (60) days of 

Lessor’s execution of this Lease.  In the event that this Lease (and any applicable memorandum) 

is not fully executed by both Lessor and Lessee for any reason, Lessee shall have no obligation 

to pay the Conditional Signing Bonus to Lessor. 

 

1617. Applicable Law. Lessee shall, at all times, in its use and occupancy of the Site 

and in the conduct of its operations thereon, comply with all applicable federal, state, and local 

laws, ordinances, and regulations. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Lease as of the date first written above. 

 

CITY OF KODIAK 

710 Mill Bay Road 

Kodiak, Alaska 99615 

 

 

 

Aimée Kniaziowski, City Manager 

 

 NCWPCS MPL 31 – YEAR SITES 

TOWER HOLDINGS, LLC, by and 

througha Delaware limited liability company 

 

 By: CCATT LLC, its attorney in 

fact.a Delaware limited liability company 

 Its:  Attorney-in-Fact. 

 

By: 

Print Name:  

Title:   

 

Attest: 

 

 

 

Debra L. Marlar, City Clerk 

   

 

72



73

cperkins
Text Box
Attachment C



CITY OF KODIAK 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 1323 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KODIAK 
AUTHORIZING A LEASE OF A COMMUNICATION SITE IN U.S. SURVEY 3945 ON 
PILLAR MOUNTAIN TO NCWPCS MPL 31- YEAR SITES TOWER HOLDINGS, LLC 

WHEREAS, the City owns property on Pillar Mountain known as Pillar Mountain 
Communication Site No. 11 that it has leased to New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC ("New 
Cingular"), for a communications site; and 

WHEREAS, the City approved the assignment of the lease by N·ew Cingular to CCATT, 
LLC ("CCATT") by Resolution No. 2014-05 on January 16, 2014; and 

WHEREAS, the lease to CCATT will expire on December 31, 2014; and 

WHEREAS, NCWPCS MPL 31 - Year Sites Tower Holdings, LLC, a Delaware limited 
liability company ("NCWPCS"), is the successor to CCATT, and NCWPCS has requested that 
the City Council authorize the Lease Agreement - Pillar Mountain Communications Site No. 11 
("Lease") that now is before this meeting; and 

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the City that the Lease be authorized. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Kodiak, Alaska, 
as follows: 

Section 1: 

Section 2: 

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in Kodiak City Code Chapter 18.20, the 
Council of the City of Kodiak hereby authorizes the Lease with NCWPCS for a 
term commencing January 1, 2015, and ending December 31, 2019, of the 
communications site described in the Lease, located on U.S. Survey 3945 on 
Pillar Mountain in the City of Kodiak. 

The form and content of the Lease between the City and NCWPCS hereby are in 
all respects authorized, approved and confirmed, and the City Manager hereby is 
authorized, empowered and directed to execute and deliver the Lease to 
NCWPCS on behalf of the City, in substantially the form and content now before 
this meeting but with such changes, modifications, additions and deletions therein 
as she shall deem necessary, desirable or appropriate, the execution thereof to 
constitute conclusive evidence of approval of any and all changes, modifications, 
additions or deletions therein from the form and content of said document now 
before this meeting, and from and after the execution and delivery of said 
document, the City Manager hereby is authorized, empowered and directed to do 
all acts and things and to execute all documents as may be necessary to carry out 
and comply with the provisions of the Lease as executed. 

Ordinance No. 1323 
City/NCWPCS 
Pillar Mt. No. 11 
Page 1 of2 

74

cperkins
Text Box
Attachment D



Section 3: 

ATTEST: 

The Lease authorized by this ordinance is subject to the requirements of City 
Charter Section V -17. Therefore, if one or more referendum petitions with 
signatures are properly filed within one month after the passage and publication of 
this ordinance, this ordinance shall not go into effect until the petition or petitions 
are finally found to be illegal and/or insufficient, or, if any such petition is found 
legal and sufficient, until the ordinance is approved at an election by a majority of 
the qualified voters voting on the question. If no referendum petition with 
signatures is filed, this ordinance shall go into effect one month after its passage 
and publication. 

First Reading: August 28, 2014 
Second Reading: September 11, 2014 
Effective Date: October 17, 2014 

Ordinance No. 1323 
City/NCWPCS 
Pillar Mt. No. 11 
Page 2 of2 

75



76

cperkins
Text Box
Attachment E



77



78



 

JANUARY 8, 2015  

Agenda Item V. c. Memo Page 2 of 3 

 

responder response for the City and the Borough begins and ends at the PSAP. Dispatch operations are a 

key part of the Kodiak Police Department’s Mission, which include providing emergency dispatch 

services for the Alaska State Troopers, by contract, when their Fairbanks communications are down. 

 

When the PSAP receives a 911 call from outside the corporate city limits, which would require a State 

Trooper response, the PSAP will connect with the Fairbanks dispatch center. Although the call has been 

connected, the PSAP cannot terminate the call on our end without disconnecting the caller from the 

Fairbanks dispatch center. Therefore, it is imperative the City accepts the grant so the PSAP can be 

replaced with a new Next Generation 911 system (NG911). The current E911 system located in the 

PSAP cannot be upgraded or repaired if failure occurred due to the age of the system. 

 

In today’s E911 environment, the public can primarily make only emergency voice calls and Teletype 

calls (by hearing-impaired persons). Only minimal data is delivered with these calls, such as Automatic 

Number Identification (ANI), subscriber name and Automatic Location Identification (ALI), when 

available.  

 

The vision of the Next Generation 911 system is to enable the public to make voice, text, or video calls 

from any communications device via Internet Protocol based networks. The 911 center of the future will 

also be able to receive data from devices such as Advanced Automatic Collision Notification systems, 

medical alert systems, and a variety of other “sensors.” The infrastructure envisioned by NG911 will 

support transfer of emergency calls to other PSAP’s, including any accompanying data.  

 

Currently in Alaska, there are three other municipalities and/or Boroughs with PSAP’s that are NG911 

capable. Those are Soldotna, the Mat-Su Valley, and Fairbanks. 

 

ALTERNATIVES:  

1) Authorize the adoption of this resolution, in which case staff will proceed hiring a new 

consultant to update or create a new RFP to replace the current E911 system at the KPD PSAP. 

This is the recommendation staff makes to Council. 

2) Do not authorize this resolution. The KPD PSAP is archaic, and ultimately, the system will fail. 

This would have a negative impact on KPD PSAP operations and affect service delivery and the 

public safety. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: The grant, for $381,472, will be used to reimburse costs of replacing 

KPD’s current E911 system with a new, NG911 system, capable of answering 911 calls, accepting text 

messages and photos.  

   

LEGAL: N/A 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends Council adopt Resolution No. 2015–01 to accept 

the Department of Commerce, Community, and Economic Development grant award for $381,472. This 

grant would reimburse the cost of replacing KPD’s archaic E911 system with a new NG911 system.  

79



 

JANUARY 8, 2015  

Agenda Item V. c. Memo Page 3 of 3 

 

CITY MANAGER’S COMMENTS: I am very pleased and appreciative that the City received a 

legislative grant for the replacement or upgrades to our E911 system during the legislative session. We 

make formal acceptance of these grants by resolution, and I support Chief Wallace’s recommendation to 

accept the funds so we can update the RFP and begin the process of providing dependable E911 service 

to the region. 

 

 

  

 

ATTACHMENTS:  

Attachment A: Resolution No. 2015–01  

Attachment B: State of Alaska Department of Commerce, Community, and Economic   

   Development grant award notification for FY2015 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PROPOSED MOTION: 

Move to adopt Resolution No. 2015–01. 

80



CITY OF KODIAK 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 2015–01 

 

 A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KODIAK ACCEPTING 

A LEGISLATIVE GRANT FOR E911 UPGRADES 
 

 

 WHEREAS, the Kodiak Police Department’s Public Safety Answering Point is one of the 

most critical pieces of Kodiak’s safety response capabilities; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Public Safety Answering Point continues to provide area-wide dispatch 

services and E911 service to the Kodiak area, including areas outside the City’s corporate 

boundaries; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the existing E911 equipment is old and outdated; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the system continues to experience unexpected failures with replacement 

parts and service/maintenance agreements no longer available due to the age of the system; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Kodiak identified the upgrades and/or replacement of the E911 

system as both a state and federal priority since 2010; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Kodiak actively lobbied for state and federal funding assistance 

for replacement/upgrades for this important public safety system; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Alaska State Legislature approved an FY2015 reappropriation of funds 

for this project in the amount of $381,472; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Kodiak will use these funds to update the RFP for planning and 

replacement of the existing E911 system to maintain a viable Public Safety Answering Point for 

the Kodiak area. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Kodiak, Alaska, 

that an Alaska State Legislature FY2015 Legislative Grant in the amount of $381,472 is hereby 

accepted, and the City Manager is authorized to execute the grant agreement and related docu-

ments. 

 

  

 

  CITY OF KODIAK 

 

 

 

  MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

  

CITY CLERK  Adopted:  

 

81

cperkins
Text Box
Attachment A



82

cperkins
Text Box
Attachment B



83



84



 

 

JANUARY 8, 2015 

Agenda Item V.d. Memo Page 2 of 4 

 

on property controlled by QDC. ADEC started the public advertising notice for QDC’s permit in 

November 2012. Public opposition to the Middle Bay site and permit required ADEC to extend the 

comment period well beyond the shut-off notice the Borough had given the City. 

 

Staff worked with the USCG and the Borough to find available options. The USCG granted the City a 

temporary permit to stockpile biosolids from the WWTP on USCG land. This permit was issued in the 

first week of December 2012, which included ADEC approval of the City’s temporary stockpiling plan. 

During the same time period the Borough staff worked on options to allow the City to compost Class B 

biosolids within the landfill footprint, and the Borough Assembly approved the agreement between the 

City and the Borough in late December 2012. ADEC approved the operations plan for composting Class 

B by the end of December 2012, and beginning the first of January 2013, QDC started composting the 

weekly biosolid deliveries at the City’s allowed location on top of the active landfill.  

 

DISCUSSION: QDC has been making Class B compost at the landfill since January 2013. This has 

been an extremely challenging endeavor because of the site location, lack of room, and lack of utilities 

available on site and the unusually wet weather conditions. 

 

QDC met with City staff in October 2013 regarding the need for additional fees paid by the City due to 

changed conditions that affected the outcome of the composting operation. This was based upon the 

intended site at Middle Bay versus the current location and its difficult conditions. The City Manager 

asked for a breakdown of costs so the request could be analyzed prior to Council presentation. QDC 

prepared a memo and spreadsheet that showed the cost overruns, equipment purchase required, and 

amount of funds requested based on the very difficult change in conditions. Staff arranged for QDC to 

make the request for the negotiated funding increase to the City Council.  

 

At the December 9, 2014, City Council work session, QDC presented the request by addressing 

challenges at the location and the conditions the crew was struggling with, primarily caused by the 

weather. Operating under these conditions created significant increases in operating cost. The primary 

cost increase has been the purchase of additional equipment needed to operate completely outside in the 

weather rather than under cover. Being outside also increased the amount of labor needed to continually 

uncover and recover piles each time the weather changed. 

 

The compromise that QDC proposed was for compensation for the increased equipment required and 

some additional labor cost. They put a proposal together that started in October 2013 through the end of 

December 2014 to be paid as a lump sum amount of $87,370. They requested an additional sum of 

$8,275.88 be added to each month’s regular payment until composting is started in the new permitted 

facility. 

 

Staff understood from the discussion at the work session on December 9 that Council understood the 

challenges and supported the request. The City Manager and staff had a discussion with the City 

85



 

 

JANUARY 8, 2015 

Agenda Item V.d. Memo Page 3 of 4 

 

Attorney. The Att6orney recommended an amendment to the existing contract and not a new contract 

due to legally binding language in the contract. The Attorney recommended the change be executed 

under KCC 2.08.060 (f). With this guidance, staff prepared the change order and documents were signed 

on December 12, 2014. 

 

ALTERNATIVES: Since beginning the temporary operation of compost to Class B at the landfill, this 

whole project has struggled with the operating conditions and lack of room to correct operational issues. 

The only options staff sees is to compensate the contractor for the additional cost and continue moving 

forward with the new facility as soon as possible. Staff evaluated many options and the cost of each 

option was higher than the present rate with QDC. QDC has been a steady partner with the City, and the 

Council recognized that and supported the requested increase presented here. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: The cost of this contract is covered in the annual WWTP budget in 

the biosolid disposal line item. Additional funds will be transferred from the Sewer Utilities fund 

balance in the supplemental budget to cover this cost increase. 

 

LEGAL: The City Attorney was consulted about the best options to accommodate QDC’s request. 

Based on the City Council’s support at the work session, he recommended an amendment to the existing 

contract with the amendment executed by a change order, per KCC 2.08/060 (f) which allows the City 

Manager the ability to approve change orders under such circumstances. The Attorney also prepared the 

amendment. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that Council authorize Change Order No. 1 to the 

composting contract per the attached documents. 

 

CITY MANAGER’S COMMENTS: I support QDC’s request for increased fees, because they have 

satisfied me that the additional funds are needed. They have been required to purchase equipment that 

was not planned for earlier, and they have encountered constraints and difficult working conditions 

requiring more man hours. Peter Olsen made his presentation to Council in December and convinced 

them of the immediacy of his needs and the reasonableness of his request. Following Peter’s 

presentation, I consulted with our attorney who recommended amending the existing contract and 

approving the change by change order, per KCC 2.08.060(f), which I did.  

 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 Attachment A: Change Order No. 1 with QDC’s proposal. 

 Attachment B: Amendment No. 2 to QDC contract 

 Attachment C: Breakdown of QDC costs 

 

 

86



 

 

JANUARY 8, 2015 

Agenda Item V.d. Memo Page 4 of 4 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PROPOSED MOTION: 

Move to authorize Change Order No. 1 (Second Amendment) to the composting contract with 

Quayanna Development Corporation with required funding to be transferred from the Sewer 

Utility fund balance to the WWTP biosolid disposal line item with FY2015 Supplemental 

Budget Amendment No. 1. 

87



88

cperkins
Text Box
Attachment A



89



90



91



92



93

cperkins
Text Box
Attachment B



94



95

cperkins
Text Box
Attachment C



96



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(This page left intentionally blank.) 

97



98



 

JANUARY 8, 2015 

Agenda Item V. e., Memo Page 2 of 2 

 

Mikunda, Cottrell, & Co.) for auditing services. The fees for services, not including travel expenses, will 

be $46,120 for 2013, $48,426 for 2014, and $50,363 for 2015.  

 

The auditors from BDO worked with City staff during the summer and into the fall of 2014 to review 

records, run their tests, and complete the audit documents. As in past years, staff recommends Council 

review and then approve the final FY2014 audited comprehensive financial report by motion at this 

meeting.  

 

ALTERNATIVES: N/A 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Compliance with Kodiak City Code Section 3.24.020 is required. It 

states that “upon council’s acceptance of the annual financial report, necessary budgetary/accounting 

entries shall be recorded in the succeeding fiscal year for all outstanding encumbrances and incurred 

obligations, as disclosed in the prior fiscal year’s annual financial report.”  

 

LEGAL: N/A 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the City Council accept the Fiscal Year 2014 

audited comprehensive annual financial report by motion.  

 

CITY MANAGER’S COMMENTS: The annual audit is a financial requirement of the City. Staff 

prepared for and worked closely with the auditors as they gathered information during the summer and 

fall to prepare the final report. Council will have had the presentation at the January 6 work session, and 

I recommend that Council accept the FY2014 audited comprehensive financial report by motion at this 

meeting. I am pleased with the outcome of the audit. I want to thank Interim Finance Director Karl 

Swanson and the Finance Department staff for their work during the audit and for their ongoing 

professionalism and attention to detail.  

 

 

 

NOTE:  

The Mayor and City Council members were issued copies of the Fiscal Year 2014 

Comprehensive Financial Annual Report (CAFR). These reports should be brought to 

the 1/6 work session and the 1/8 regular meetings for review and discussion.  

 

 

 

PROPOSED MOTION: 

 Move to accept the City’s Fiscal Year 2014 audited Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.  

99



100



 

JANURY 8, 2015 

Agenda Item V. f. Memo Page 2 of 2 

 

 

{The Council will appoint the Personnel Board members by motion.} 

 

Personnel Board  All members must be City residents. 

1 regular seat with term ending December 31, 2016 (two-year term) 

Applicant: 

 Pat Szabo (incumbent, City resident) 

 

 

Planning and Zoning Commission Three of the seven seats on the Planning and Zoning Commission are 

designated as City seats. One seat expired December 31, 2015. Alaska Statute 29.40.020 provides that an 

appointment to the Planning and Zoning Commission is made by the Borough Mayor for a three-year term from a 

list of recommendations submitted by the Council. Historically, the Council has submitted the names of one or more 

applicants for recommendation of appointment. If the Council has had a preference of who is appointed, this list 

contained only those name(s). 

 

1 City seat with term ending December 31, 2017 (three-year term) 

 Applicants: 

  Alan Schmitt (incumbent), City resident 

  Kyle Crow, City resident 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS:  

 Attachment A: Port and Harbors Advisory Board Current Member List, Applications, and 2014  

   meeting attendance 

 Attachment B: Personnel Board Current Member List and Application 

 Attachment C: Planning and Zoning Member List and Applications  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PROPOSED MOTION: 

Move to appoint Pat Szabo to the Personnel Board for a term ending December 31, 2016, 

recommend _____________ for appointment to the three-year City seat on the Planning and 

Zoning Commission; and confirm the Mayoral advisory board appointments to the Port and 

Harbors Advisory Board as stated. 

101



102

cperkins
Text Box
Attachment A



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111

cperkins
Text Box
Attachment B



112



113

cperkins
Text Box
Attachment C



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122


	Agenda
	Approval of Minutes of the December 11, 2014, Regular Council Meeting
	PERSONS TO BE HEARD
	a.	Proclamation: Stalking Awareness Month
	Attachment A


	UNFINISHED BUSINESS
	a.	Second Reading and Public Hearing, Ordinance No. 1328, Authorizing a Contract With the Kodiak Historical Society to Operate the Baranov Museum
	Attachment A
	Attachment B
	Attachment C

	b. Appointment to the City Position on the Prince William Sound Regional Citizens Advisory Council
	Attachment A
	Attachment B
	Attachment C


	NEW BUSINESS
	a.	First Reading, Ordinance No. 1329, Authorizing the City to Enter Into an Amendment to the Preferential Use Agreement With Horizon Lines of Alaska, LLC
	Attachment A
	Attachment B
	Attachment C

	b.	First Reading, Ordinance No. 1330, Amending Ordinance No. 1323, Authorizing a Lease of a Communication Site in U.S. Survey 3945 on Pillar Mountain To NCWPCS MPL 31 – Year Sites Tower Holdings, LLC
	Attachment A
	Attachment B
	Attachment C
	Attachment D
	Attachment E

	c.	Resolution No. 2015–01, Accepting a State of Alaska Legislative Grant for E911Updates
	Attachment A
	Attachment B

	d.	Authorization of Change Order No. 1 (Second Amendment) to the Composting Contract With Quayanna Development Corporation
	Attachment A
	Attachment B
	Attachment C

	e.	Acceptance of FY2014 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (Audit)
	f. Advisory and Personnel Board Appointments and Planning and Zoning Commission Recommendation
	Attachment A
	Attachment B
	Attachment C





